
 

December 10, 2019 Village Board Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 
Tuesday, December 10, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall  
N168 W20733 Main Street  
Jackson, WI 53037 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Village Citizen Comment on an Agenda Item (Please Sign In) 
 

4. Resolution #19-36 – Recognizing the Actions of the Jackson Fire 
Department Members Involved in the Water Rescue 
 

5. Kerry – Update of Plant Activities 
 

6. Approval of Minutes for the Village Board Meeting of November 12, 2019 
and Special Village Board Meeting of December 2, 2019 
 

7. Approval of Licenses 
• Entertainment Licenses: 

    Coffeeville Company 
 Jackson Parks & Recreation 
 Jackson Pub LLC 

• Massage License: 
Back in Balance Bodyworks:  Jenna E. Frank 

• Operator Licenses: 
    Village Mart:  Jessica A. Meyer   
 

8. Appointment of Election Officials for the 2020-2021 Term 
    

9. Budget & Finance Committee 
• Resolution #19-37 – Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of 

$2,025,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2019C 
• Resolution #19-38 – Resolution Awarding the Sale of $6,350,000 General 

Obligation Public Safety Building Bonds, Series 2019D 
• Pay Request #2 – 2019 Chateau Dr & Hickory Ln Reconstruction Project 

• Change Orders 2, 3a & 3b – 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project 
• Pay Request #2 – 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project 
• Request #1 – Reimbursement Offsite Improvement Laurel Springs 
• Review of Quote for Traffic Study of TIF #7 by SRF Consulting Group 

(Board of Public Works Draft Minutes) 



 

December 10, 2019 Village Board Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 

10. Plan Commission  
• No Recommendations 

     

11. Board of Public Works 
• Town of Jackson Water Expansion Area – Water Service Request – Robin 

Olson 
     (Board of Public Works Draft Minutes) 
 

12. Joint Parks & Recreation  
•  No Recommendations 

 

13. West Bend School District – Update 

 

14. Proposed Public Safety Building – Update 

 

15. Departmental Reports 
 

16. Mid-Moraine Municipal Association Report 
 
17. Washington County Board Report 
   

18. Greater Jackson Business Alliance Report 
 

19. Citizens to Address the Village Board 
 

20. Adjourn 

 
 

Persons with disabilities requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting 
should contact the Village Hall at least one (1) business day prior to the meeting. 

 
 

 
 
  



1 
Resolution #19-36 

RESOLUTION #19-36 
_____________________________________________________________ 

 
A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE ACTIONS OF THE JACKSON FIRE 

DEPARTMENT MEMBERS INVOLVED IN THE WATER RESCUE 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
The Village Board of the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin, does 
resolve as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, thousands of Jackson area community residents benefit from the 
courageous service of the Jackson Fire Department; and  
 

WHEREAS, these department personnel work selflessly on behalf of the 
residents of the Jackson community, regardless of the risk or hazard involved; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the men and women of these departments carry out the critical role 
of protecting and ensuring public safety in emergency situations; and 
 

WHEREAS,  on November 5, 2019, at approximately 11:30 a.m., the Jackson 
Fire Department, while assisting the Jackson Police Department responded to a man in 
crisis that was in Hasmer Lake. The Jackson Fire Department immediately responded 
and initiated a water rescue. The firefighters swam out to the man and rescued him 
with seconds to spare. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Jackson Village Board 
gratefully acknowledges and congratulates the personnel of the Jackson Fire 
Department, and thanks them for providing a valuable service to our community. 
 
Introduced by:  _    _     Seconded by:          
                                   
 
Vote:        Ayes           Nays              Passed and Approved:     
  
 
       ______________________________  
       Michael E. Schwab - Village President 
 
Attest: ______________________________                                              
  Jilline S. Dobratz - Village Clerk 
 
 
Proof of Posting: 
 
I the undersigned, certify that I posted this Resolution on bulletin boards at the Village Hall, 
Post Office, and one other location in the Village.  
 
                                _   __                          

Village Official        Date 



 

November 12, 2019 Village Board Minutes 

Page 1 of 5 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Village Board Meeting  
Tuesday, November 12, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168 W20733 Main Street 
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 

Pres. Schwab called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
Members Present:  Trustees Emmrich, Kruepke, Kurtz, Lippold, Malcolm and Olson. 

 Staff present:  Collin Johnson, Chief Swaney, Kelly Valentino, Chief Vossekuil, John Walther, 
Jilline Dobratz. 

 Also Present:  Jonathan Schatz, Ehlers 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
Pres. Schwab led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

3. Any Village Citizen Comment on an Agenda Item. 
 None. 
 
4. Public Hearing – Year 2050 Village of Jackson Comprehensive Plan 

Pres. Schwab opened the Public Hearing.  
Ben McKay and Rochelle Brien of SEWRPC were present and gave an overview of the 
Comprehensive Plan. Ben McKay stated state comprehensive plan legislation requires a plan 
be updated no less than every ten years. The new plan document has two parts. Part one 
added an implementation section on the new mediated cooperative plan agreement. Also, 
there are new procedures in place in updating the Comprehensive Plan included in the plan 
document. Part two is the original 2009 Comprehensive Plan with the Village text being 
separated out from the Town of Jackson text. The reason for including this is to have 
historical documentation of the plan and it also includes information regarding the full nine 
elements of the Comprehensive Plan that are required by the state comprehensive planning 
laws. Rochelle Brien summarized the plan use plan map updates. It includes updates to the 
Village boundary, an update to the sewer service area boundaries, updates to reflect the 
Village’s planned land uses for the areas to be attached per the mediated cooperative plan 
agreement and updates to reflect the planned urban growth based on input from Village 
officials, updates to include current information on primary environmental corridors and 
isolated natural resource areas, updates to wetlands outside of environmental corridors and 
isolated natural resource area land use category to reflect current wetland information and 
updates for parcel lines and street and highway rights-of-way.  
John Walther notified the Board there were 19 comments that were made relative to the 
new plan. Most of the comments address the verbiage that remains in part two of the 
document. Everything mentioned in the comments is covered in part one of the new plan. 
There are Resolutions which are attached to the document that show the Joint Planning 
Group was disbanded and a number of other references that have addressed each of the 
items. Pres. Schwab closed the Public Hearing. 
 

5. Ordinance #19-04 – An Ordinance to Adopt an Amendment to the Village of 
Jackson Comprehensive Plan to Create a Year 2050 Village of Jackson 
Comprehensive Plan 



 

November 12, 2019 Village Board Minutes 

Page 2 of 5 

Motion by Tr. Olson, seconded by Tr. Kurtz to introduce Ordinance #19-04 - An Ordinance 
to Adopt an Amendment to the Village of Jackson Comprehensive Plan to Create a Year 
2050 Village of Jackson Comprehensive Plan. 
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 
Motion by Pres. Schwab, seconded by Tr. Lippold to suspend the rules and allow the second 
reading with approval of Ordinance #19-04 - An Ordinance to Adopt an Amendment to the 
Village of Jackson Comprehensive Plan to Create a Year 2050 Village of Jackson 
Comprehensive Plan. 
Roll Call Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Tr. Olson, seconded by Tr. Emmrich to approve Ordinance #19-04 – An 
Ordinance to Adopt an Amendment to the Village of Jackson Comprehensive Plan to Create 
a Year 2050 Village of Jackson Comprehensive Plan. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

6. Public Hearing – Planned Unit Development (PUD) – Rytec – Sign – W223 
N16601 Cedar Parkway  
Pres. Schwab opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke. Pres. Schwab closed the Public 
Hearing. 
Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) – Rytec – Sign – W223 N16601 Cedar Parkway. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 
7. Approval of Minutes for the Village Board Meeting of October 8, 2019 and Special 

Village Board Meetings of October 15, October 29 and November 5, 2019. 
Motion by Tr. Emmrich, second by Tr. Lippold to approve the Village Board Minutes of 
October 8, 2019 and Special Village Board Meetings of October 15, October 29 and 
November 5, 2019.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 

8. Approval of Licenses 
• Operator Licenses: 

East Side Mart:  Anthony J. Aliota, James P. Becker, Colton L. Brooder 
 Jackson Pub:  Geno A. Balistreri 
 Latest Edition:  Jacqueline M. Crandall 
 Main Street Mart:  Laura L. Ammon, Christina R. Hickey 
 Village Mart:  Pam J. Reuter 
Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve the licenses as listed. 
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Tr. Kruepke). Motion carried. 

 

9.  Budget & Finance Committee 
Jonathan Schatz of Ehlers gave background information on the three resolutions authorizing 
the first part of financing for the municipal complex. Because of State Statute, you cannot 
issue general obligation bonds which would take out debt for over 20 years to finance a 
Village Hall for that type of purpose. General Obligation Notes will be issued for 10 years for 
the Village Hall portion. General Obligation Bonds will be issued for the Fire and Police 
portion. Pres. Schwab inquired if there is a difference cost wise for the Village between the 
notes and bonds. Jonathan stated no and explained the financing.  



 

November 12, 2019 Village Board Minutes 

Page 3 of 5 

• Resolution #19-28 – Providing for the Sale of $2,025,000 General Obligation 
Promissory Notes, Series 2019C 
Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Tr. Olson to approve Resolution #19-28 – Providing 
for the Sale of $2,025,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2019C. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried 

 
• Resolution #19-29 – Initial Resolution Authorizing General Obligation Bonds in an 

Amount Not to Exceed $6,350,000 for Fire and Police Safety Building 
Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Kurtz to approve Resolution #19-29 – Initial 
Resolution Authorizing General Obligation Bonds in an Amount Not to Exceed 
$6,350,000 for Fire and Police Safety Building. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

• Resolution #19-30 – Providing for the Sale of $6,350,000 General Obligation Public 
Safety Building Bonds, Series 2019D. 
Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Tr. Lippold to approve Resolution #19-30 – 
Providing for the Sale of $6,350,000 General Obligation Public Safety Building Bonds, 
Series 2019D 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

• Pay Request #1 – 2019 Chateau Drive & Hickory Lane Reconstruction Project 
Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Kurtz  to approve Pay Request #1 – 2019 Chateau 
Drive & Hickory Lane Reconstruction Project in the amount of $303,608.03. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried 
 

• Change Order #1 – 2019 Chateau Drive & Hickory Lane Reconstruction Project. 
Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Tr. Olson to approve Pay Request #1 – 2019 
Chateau Drive & Hickory Lane Reconstruction Project in the amount of $19,910.00. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried 
 

• Pay Request #1 – 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project 
Motion by Tr. Olson, second by Tr. Lippold to approve Pay Request #1 – 2019 
Jackson Park Alley Project in an amount of $130,306.16. 
Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried 

 
10. Plan Commission 

• Certified Survey Map – Robin Olson 
Pres. Schwab stated this came from Plan Commission  
Motion by Tr. Kruepke, second by Tr. Kurtz to approve Certified Survey Map – Robin 
Olson. 
Tr. Olson commented this is in the limited water service area and there is an 
agreement to replace what was lost without annexation. The intent of the agreement 
is not to be expanding in that area. Tr. Lippold agrees with Tr. Olson and this type of 
building is not part of that agreement. Pres. Schwab stated he supports the Olson’s 
desire to split up their property recognizing that if the Village is not able to grant 
water, they have the opportunity to put in a well on the property. Tr. Emmrich 
inquired if the water survey was completed. Pres. Schwab stated it is in process. 
Vote: 5 ayes, 2 nays (Tr. Olson and Tr. Lippold). Motion carried. 



 

November 12, 2019 Village Board Minutes 

Page 4 of 5 

 
 Pres. Schwab requested a recess to sign documents. Reconvened at 7:28 p.m. 
 
11. Board of Public Works 

• No Recommendations 
 

12. Joint Parks & Recreation. 
• No Recommendations 

 
13. West Bend School District - Update 

Pres. Schwab commented there was a private committee that put together a study and 
presented it to the School Board. He spoke to Superintendent Kirkegaard regarding the 
study and he pointed out it was a private study. It was not commissioned by the School 
Board, it was done on a voluntary basis and the School Board is treating it as private. In the 
next two weeks, they are going through school by school to review the findings. The private 
study was done purely from a fiscal point of view. Superintendent Kirkegaard pointed out 
the greatest growth in the District is in the Jackson area. The study didn’t take into account 
how much it costs to operate busses. Every bus that is on the road costs $75,000 a year to 
run. Superintendent Kirkegaard plans to give the Village Board an update after the School 
Board has completed its review.  

 
14. Proposed Municipal Building - Update 

Kris Dressler and Ron Dalton were present from Cedar Corporation and gave an update. 
Yesterday they met with Fire, Police and Village staff. Structural design, equipment and 
furniture designs and technology will continue to be worked through. Still looking to start 
construction in Spring 2020 and continuing for 12 to 16 months. Some permitting items are 
being worked through and flood plain items are being taken care of before bidding. Tr. 
Emmrich asked the Chiefs if the houses will be used for trainings. Chief Swaney stated Chief 
Vossekuil will train first in the houses and they will utilize them second. Collin Johnson 
commented the houses would have to be tested for asbestos content before any burning. 
Ron Dalton explained the floodplain issues and what is currently being done.  

 
15. Departmental Reports. 

Parks and Recreation Director Kelly Valentino thanked everyone who helped and 
participated with the Ghoul Gala event. The Kids Rummage sale is on Saturday, December 
7th with a Bake sale. Baked goods can be dropped off on Friday or Saturday morning. 
 
Fire Chief Swaney stated the paramedic flex staffing has been approved by the State. It 
started on Monday and they have already utilized the service. They look forward to serving 
the community. 
 
Administrator John Walther commented there have been weather challenges with 
construction. Jackson Drive is open. Brian Kober sent out an email to the residents of the 
Chateau Drive reconstruction project with an update. The plan is to have the road 
completed by Thanksgiving with final landscaping done in the Spring. They are trying to get 
the top layer on Hickory Drive and Jackson Park Circle to get them finished.  

 
16. Mid-Moraine Municipal Association Report 



 

November 12, 2019 Village Board Minutes 

Page 5 of 5 

Tr. Kurtz stated there will be a dinner in January and the meetings resume in January. 
 
17. Washington County Board Report  

County Supervisor Bob Hartwig was present and gave the monthly report. No action was 
taken on the ordinance regarding a special assessment on septic systems. An overview of 
the Foster Care program was given, and Washington County is in dire need of Foster 
Parents. The County Code has been decodified. The salary has been set for the County 
Executive which will be a four-year term. The County Historical Society annual meeting is on 
Tuesday, December 19th at 5:30 p.m. Kelly Valentino thanked Bob Hartwig and Cedarburg 
Creek Farms for decorating at the Ghoul Gala and donating the giant pumpkin. 

 
18. Greater Jackson Business Alliance Report 

Brian Heckendorf stated the next general membership meeting is tomorrow at 11:30 a.m. 
at the Community Center. It will be a networking/brainstorming session on how to increase 
membership and becoming more active. 

  

19. Citizens to Address the Village Board 
 Traci Wells started a petition today along with Casey Latz on how to support the Jackson 

community and what would happen if we did lose the school. She asked if there is a way to 
get the word out for the petition and it will be going to the School Board. 

 
 Casey Latz stated she attended the October School Board meeting. The Task force was five 

businessmen from West Bend, nobody from Jackson was included. She is hoping that the 
Board keeps this positive and moves forward with it because we can’t lose our school. 

 
 Tr. Emmrich wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving and safe holidays. 
 
20. Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stats. §19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the 

purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified 
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session; 
regarding potential property purchase. 
 

Motion by Pres. Schwab, second by Tr. Emmrich to convene into closed session at 8:26 
p.m. to include the Village Board, the Village Administrator and the Village Clerk. 
Roll Call Vote: 7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

Reconvene into Open Session to Adjourn  
 The Village Board reconvened into open session at 8:36 p.m. 
 
21. Adjourn 

Motion by Pres.  Schwab, second by Tr. Kruepke to adjourn.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Meeting was adjourned at 8:36 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  

 
 

Jilline Dobratz, CMC/WCMC 
Village Clerk 



 

December 2, 2019 Special Village Board Budget Hearing Minutes 

Page 1 of 2 

DRAFT- MINUTES 
Special Village Board Meeting – Budget Hearing 
Monday, December 2, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168W20733 Main Street 
Jackson, WI 53037 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 

Acting Chair Olson called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
Members Present: Trustees Emmrich, Kruepke, Kurtz, and Malcolm. 
Member Absent:  Tr. Lippold 
Member Excused:  President Schwab 

 Staff present:  Chief Swaney, Kelly Valentino, John Walther, Paula Winter and 
Jilline Dobratz. 

 

2. Budget Public Hearing – 2020 General Fund Budget as advertised. 
 Acting Chair Olson opened the Budget Public Hearing.  

John Walther stated the General Fund Budget went up 4.95% in total. The tax 
rate is $7.99 per thousand.  
Acting Chair Olson closed the Budget Public Hearing. 

 

3. Resolution #19-31 – Adopt the 2020 General Fund Budget. 
 Motion by Tr. Kruepke, second by Tr. Malcolm to adopt Resolution #19-31 – 

Adopt the 2020 General Fund Budget. 
Motion amended by Tr. Kruepke, second by Tr. Malcolm to adopt Resolution #19-
31 – Adopt the 2020 General Fund Budget and authorize Acting Chair Olson to 
sign the document. 
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 

4. Resolution #19-32 – Adopt the 2019 Tax Levy for the 2020 General 
 Fund  Budget. 

Motion by Tr. Kurtz, second by Tr. Malcolm to adopt Resolution #19-32 – Adopt 
the 2019 Tax Levy for the 2020 General Fund Budget and authorize Acting Chair 
Olson to sign the document.  
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
5. Resolution #19-33 – Adopt the 2020 Water Utility Budget. 
 Motion by Tr. Kurtz, second by Tr. Kruepke to adopt Resolution #19-33 – Adopt 

the 2020 Water Utility Budget and authorize Acting Chair Olson to sign the 
document. 
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
6. Resolution #18-34 – Adopt the 2020 Sewer Utility Budget. 

Motion by Tr.  Malcolm, second by Tr. Emmrich to adopt Resolution #19-34 – 
Adopt  the 2020 Sewer Utility Budget and authorize Acting Chair Olson to sign the 
document. 
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 
 



 

December 2, 2019 Special Village Board Budget Hearing Minutes 

Page 2 of 2 

7.  Resolution #19-35 – Establish Fees for 2020. 
 Motion by Tr. Kruepke, second by Tr. Emmrich to approve Resolution #19-35 – 
 Establish Fees for 2020 and authorize Acting Chair Olson to sign the document. 

John Walther commented the fees remained the same as 2019. There are some 
clarifications in the Building Permit Fee Schedule. 
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays.  Motion carried. 

 
8. Adjourn. 

Motion by Tr. Kruepke, second by Tr. Emmrich to adjourn.  
Vote:  5 ayes, 0 nays.  Meeting was adjourned at 6:35 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  
 
 
 
Jilline Dobratz, CMC/WCMC 
Village Clerk 



Licenses:  December 10, 2019  Village Board Meeting 
 

Name Establishment Police Chief 
Recommendation 

ENTERTAINMENT LICENSES 

Jack Kulwikowski Coffeeville Company Approval 

Kelly Valentino Jackson Parks & Recreation Approval 

Jon Zandi Jackson Pub LLC Approval 

 

MASSAGE LICENSE 

Jenna Frank  Back in Balance Bodyworks Approval 

 

OPERATOR’S LICENSE 

Jessica A. Meyer Village Mart Approval 

 
 



1 

 

Clerk’s Department 

Memo 

  To:  Village Board Members 
From:      Jilline Dobratz, Clerk 

Date:      12/06/2019 

Re:          Election Inspectors for 2020-2021 

Below is the list of Election Inspectors. They have been contacted and would like to 
continue for the next two-year term. They are as follows: 
 
Unaffiliated List: 
Hermelinda Burkhardt, Judith Corallini, Bradlee Fons, Kathy Frank, Rachel Gergetz, 
Ryan Gergetz, Nancy Habel, Jennifer Meitz, Jeanne Miller, John Pauly, Sharon 
Pauly, Patricia Pawelski, Nancy Plier, Joan Plum, Judy Schatz, Heidi Schlenz, John 
Schlenz, Eric Schwarzenberger, Rene Serchen, Diane Stuebs, Ronald Stuebs, Gloria 
Teifke, Joyce Walter, Vicki Weisenberger, David Wettstein, Patricia Wettstein and 
Clifford Zych. 
 
Democratic Party List: 
Alan Davis, Jacquelyn Davis, Sara Davister, Lorraine McCauley and Darlene 
Schneider. 
 
Republican Party List: 
Jim Brady, Gail Lanza, Sandy Lippold and Sally Lipski. 
 
I recommend appointing the Election Inspectors listed above for the 2020-2021 
election years. 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION #19-37 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND 

SALE OF $2,025,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION 

PROMISSORY NOTES, SERIES 2019C 
 

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2019, the Village Board of the Village of Jackson, 

Washington County, Wisconsin (the "Village") adopted a resolution (the "Set Sale Resolution"), 

providing for the sale of General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2019C (the "Notes") for 

public purposes, including paying the cost of constructing the Village Hall portion of the 

Municipal Building (the "Project");  

 

WHEREAS, the Village Board hereby finds and determines that the Project is within the 

Village's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 

Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;  

 

WHEREAS, the Village is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin 

Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation promissory notes for such public 

purposes;  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Set Sale Resolution, the Village has directed Ehlers & 

Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers") to take the steps necessary to sell the Notes to pay the cost of the 

Project;  

 

WHEREAS, Ehlers, in consultation with the officials of the Village, prepared a Notice of 

Sale (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference) 

setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Notes and indicating that the Notes 

would be offered for public sale on December 10, 2019;  

 

WHEREAS, the Village Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) caused a form of notice of 

the sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Notice of Sale to be distributed to 

potential bidders offering the Notes for public sale on December 10, 2019;  

 

WHEREAS, the Village has duly received bids for the Notes as described on the Bid 

Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid 

Tabulation"); and  

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by 

the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid 

requirements set forth in the Notice of Sale and is deemed to be the most advantageous to the 

Village.  Ehlers has recommended that the Village accept the Proposal.  A copy of said Proposal 

submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village that: 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -2- 

 

Section 1.  Ratification of the Notice of Sale and Offering Materials.  The Village Board 

hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Notes set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto as and 

for the details of the Notes.  The Notice of Sale and any other offering materials prepared and 

circulated by Ehlers are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.  All actions taken by 

officers of the Village and Ehlers in connection with the preparation and distribution of the 

Notice of Sale, and any other offering materials are hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 

Section 1A.  Authorization and Award of the Notes.  For the purpose of paying the cost 

of the Project, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, the 

principal sum of TWO MILLION TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,025,000) from 

the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Proposal.  The Proposal of the 

Purchaser offering to purchase the Notes for the sum set forth on the Proposal, plus accrued 

interest to the date of delivery, resulting in a true interest cost as set forth on the Proposal, is 

hereby accepted.  The President and Village Clerk or other appropriate officers of the Village are 

authorized and directed to execute an acceptance of the Proposal on behalf of the Village.  The 

good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be applied in accordance with the Notice of Sale, and 

any good faith deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be promptly returned.  The 

Notes shall bear interest at the rates set forth on the Proposal. 

 

Section 2.  Terms of the Notes.  The Notes shall be designated "General Obligation 

Promissory Notes, Series 2019C"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of 

$2,025,000; shall be dated December 30, 2019; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates 

per annum and mature on June 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth on 

the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this reference.  

Interest shall be payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year commencing on 

June 1, 2020.  Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 

months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  

The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Notes is set forth on the Debt Service 

Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by this reference (the 

"Schedule"). 

 

Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Notes maturing on June 1, 2028 and thereafter 

are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Village, on June 1, 2027 or on 

any date thereafter.  Said Notes are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from 

maturities selected by the Village, and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount 

thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

[If the Proposal specifies that any of the Notes are subject to mandatory redemption, the 

terms of such mandatory redemption shall be set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP 

and incorporated herein by this reference.  Upon the optional redemption of any of the Notes 

subject to mandatory redemption, the principal amount of such Notes so redeemed shall be 

credited against the mandatory redemption payments established in Exhibit MRP for such Notes 

in such manner as the Village shall direct.] 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -3- 

 

Section 4.  Form of the Notes.  The Notes shall be issued in registered form and shall be 

executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 

(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 

principal of and interest on the Notes as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 

resources of the Village are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of 

the taxable property of the Village a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2019 through 

2028 for the payments due in the years 2020 through 2029 in the amounts set forth on the 

Schedule. 

(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 

Notes remains unpaid, the Village shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 

obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 

the issuance of the Notes, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the 

Village and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time 

as other taxes of the Village for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried 

onto the tax roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt 

Service Fund Account created below. 

(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 

from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Notes when due, 

the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the Village then available, which sums 

shall be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 

 

(D)  Appropriation.  The Village hereby appropriates from taxes levied in 

anticipation of the issuance of the Notes, proceeds of the Notes or other funds of the Village on 

hand a sum sufficient to be irrevocably deposited in the segregated Debt Service Fund Account 

created below and used to pay debt service on the Notes coming due in 2020 as set forth on the 

Schedule. 

 

Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 

 

(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 

treasury of the Village, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and 

distinct from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 

issued by the Village may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 

fund. 

 

Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 

designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 

2019C, dated December 30, 2019" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such account shall be 

maintained until the indebtedness evidenced by the Notes is fully paid or otherwise extinguished.  

There shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all accrued interest received by 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -4- 

 

the Village at the time of delivery of and payment for the Notes; (ii) any premium which may be 

received by the Village above the par value of the Notes and accrued interest thereon; (iii) all 

money raised by the taxes herein levied and any amounts appropriated for the specific purpose of 

meeting principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (iv) such other sums as may be 

necessary at any time to pay principal of and interest on the Notes when due; (v) surplus monies 

in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified below; and (vi) such further deposits as may be 

required by Section 67.11, Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 

Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 

interest on the Notes until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Notes 

canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 

Notes prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 

invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 

payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 

and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Notes may be used to 

reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the Village, be invested by 

purchasing the Notes as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or 

in permitted municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes 

("Permitted Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service 

Fund Account.  Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform 

with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any 

applicable Treasury Regulations (the "Regulations"). 

 

(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Notes have been paid in full and 

canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 

Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the Village, unless the 

Village Board directs otherwise. 

 

Section 7.  Proceeds of the Notes; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 

the Notes (the "Note Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be 

paid at the time of the delivery of the Notes into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) 

shall be deposited into a special fund (the "Borrowed Money Fund") separate and distinct from 

all other funds of the Village and disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which 

borrowed.  Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in Permitted 

Investments.  Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, remaining in the 

Borrowed Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for which the Notes have been issued have 

been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously 

thereafter cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund 

Account. 

Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 

Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 

the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 

Regulations and an officer of the Village, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, 

shall certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -5- 

 

date of delivery of the Notes to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Notes are 

not "arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 

Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The Village represents and 

covenants that the projects financed by the Notes and the ownership, management and use of the 

projects will not cause the Notes to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 

141 of the Code.  The Village further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the 

Code to the extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes 

including, if applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The Village 

further covenants that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or 

omission of any action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any 

use of the proceeds of the Notes) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would 

cause any of the Notes to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of 

the Code or would otherwise cause interest on the Notes to be included in the gross income of 

the recipients thereof for federal income tax purposes.  The Village Clerk or other officer of the 

Village charged with the responsibility of issuing the Notes shall provide an appropriate 

certificate of the Village certifying that the Village can and covenanting that it will comply with 

the provisions of the Code and Regulations. 

 

(b) The Village also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 

restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 

Notes provided that in meeting such requirements the Village will do so only to the extent 

consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Notes and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 

to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 

 

Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Notes are hereby 

designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 

relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 

purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.   

 

Section 11.  Execution of the Notes; Closing; Professional Services.  The Notes shall be 

issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the Village by the manual or facsimile signatures of 

the President and Village Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), 

sealed with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the 

Purchaser upon payment to the Village of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the 

date of delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the 

Notes may be imprinted on the Notes in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless the 

Village has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Notes, at least one of the signatures 

appearing on each Note shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the officers 

whose signatures appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, such 

signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as if they 

had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 

directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Notes and all such documents, certificates and 

acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The Village 

hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the Village to enter into, on its behalf, agreements 

and contracts in conjunction with the Notes, including but not limited to agreements and 

contracts for legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -6- 

 

calculation services.  Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance 

of the Notes is hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 

Section 12.  Payment of the Notes; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 

Notes shall be paid by [________________, ___________, ______, which is hereby appointed 

as the Village's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.10(2), 

Wisconsin Statutes] [the Village Clerk or Village Treasurer] (the "Fiscal Agent").  [The Village 

hereby authorizes the President and Village Clerk or other appropriate officers of the Village to 

enter a Fiscal Agency Agreement between the Village and the Fiscal Agent.  Such contract may 

provide, among other things, for the performance by the Fiscal Agent of the functions listed in 

Wis. Stats. Sec. 67.10(2)(a) to (j), where applicable, with respect to the Notes]. 

 

Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Notes.  The Village shall cause 

books for the registration and for the transfer of the Notes to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The 

person in whose name any Note shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute 

owner thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Note shall be 

made only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to 

satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Note to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

Any Note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Note at 

the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 

duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 

transfer, the President and Village Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee 

or transferees a new Note or Notes of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and 

the Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No 

registration shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Note surrendered for 

transfer. 

The Village shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the President and Village Clerk are 

authorized to execute any new Note or Notes necessary to effect any such transfer. 

Section 14.  Record Date.  The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each 

interest payment date shall be the record date for the Notes (the "Record Date").  Payment of 

interest on the Notes on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 

Notes as they appear on the registration book of the Village at the close of business on the 

Record Date. 

 

Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 

order to make the Notes eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 

New York, New York ("DTC"), the Village agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 

Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the Village Clerk or other authorized 

representative of the Village is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf 

of the Village to the extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently 

on file in the Village Clerk's office. 

 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -7- 

 

Section 16.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The Village authorizes the Purchaser to 

forward the amount of the proceeds of the Notes allocable to the payment of issuance expenses 

to Old National Bank at Closing for further distribution as directed by Ehlers. 

 

Section 17.  Official Statement.  The Village Board hereby approves the Preliminary 

Official Statement with respect to the Notes and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as 

"final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and 

Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All 

actions taken by officers of the Village in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary 

Official Statement and any addenda to it or final Official Statement are hereby ratified and 

approved.  In connection with the Closing, the appropriate Village official shall certify the 

Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement.  The Village Clerk 

shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official 

Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser. 

 

Section 18.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The Village hereby 

covenants and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Notes, to enter into a written 

undertaking (the "Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of 

certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain 

events in accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the 

Notes or by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and 

the Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific 

performance of the obligations thereunder and any failure by the Village to comply with the 

provisions of the Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Notes). 

 

To the extent required under the Rule, the President and Village Clerk, or other officer of 

the Village charged with the responsibility for issuing the Notes, shall provide a Continuing 

Disclosure Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and 

terms of the Village's Undertaking. 

 

Section 19.  Record Book.  The Village Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 

proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 

statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 

Notes in the Record Book. 

 

Section 20.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 

insurance with respect to the Notes, the officers of the Village are authorized to take all actions 

necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The President and Village Clerk are 

authorized to agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and 

which are acceptable to the President and Village Clerk including provisions regarding 

restrictions on investment of Note proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond 

insurance policy, the rights of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Notes 

by the bond insurer and notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference 

required by the bond insurer to the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of 

Note provided herein. 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -8- 

 

 

Section 21.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 

rules or other actions of the Village Board or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 

hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 

event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 

such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 

effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 

 

Adopted, approved and recorded December 10, 2019. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Michael E. Schwab 

President 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Jilline Dobratz 

Village Clerk 

 (SEAL) 

 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Notice of Sale 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 

 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Bid Tabulation 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 

 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

Winning Bid 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D-1 

 

Pricing Summary 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D-2 

 

Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution.  

 

 

(See Attached) 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

[EXHIBIT MRP 

 

Mandatory Redemption Provision 

The Notes due on June 1, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject to 

mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 

price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 

interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 

in amounts sufficient to redeem on June 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 

specified below: 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity)] 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

(Form of Note) 

 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 

NO. R-___ VILLAGE OF JACKSON $_______ 

GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY NOTE, SERIES 2019C 

 

MATURITY DATE: ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE: CUSIP: 

    

June 1, _____ December 30, 2019 ____% ______ 

 

DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($__________) 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin (the 

"Village"), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its 

Nominee Name (the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity 

date identified above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the 

rate of interest per annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding 

redemption prior to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 

of each year commencing on June 1, 2020 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  

Both the principal of and interest on this Note are payable to the registered owner in lawful 

money of the United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire 

transfer to the Depository in whose name this Note is registered on the Bond Register maintained 

by [________________, ___________, ______] OR [the Village Clerk or Village Treasurer] 

(the "Fiscal Agent") or any successor thereto at the close of business on the 15th day of the 

calendar month next preceding each interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Note is 

payable as to principal upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal Agent. 

For the prompt payment of this Note together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for the 

levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the Village are 

hereby irrevocably pledged. 

This Note is one of an issue of Notes aggregating the principal amount of $2,025,000, all 

of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and redemption 

provision, issued by the Village pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin 

Statutes, for public purposes, including paying the cost of constructing the Village Hall portion 

of the Municipal Building, as authorized by a resolution adopted on December 10, 2019.  Said 

resolution is recorded in the official minutes of the Village Board for said date. 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -2- 

 

The Notes maturing on June 1, 2028 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to 

maturity, at the option of the Village, on June 1, 2027 or on any date thereafter.  Said Notes are 

redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the Village, and 

within each maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus 

accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

 

[The Notes maturing in the years ________ are subject to mandatory redemption by lot 

as provided in the resolution referred to above, at the redemption price of par plus accrued 

interest to the date of redemption and without premium.] 

 

In the event the Notes are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Notes are in 

book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 

registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 

transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 

thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 

Notes of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Notes of such maturity to be redeemed 

will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:  the 

designation, date and maturities of the Notes called for redemption, CUSIP numbers, and the 

date of redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to 

have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Notes shall 

cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 

available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 

that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Notes shall no longer be deemed to be 

outstanding. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 

exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Note have been done, have 

existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of the 

Village, including this Note and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 

limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 

irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Note, together with the interest thereon, 

when and as payable. 

This Note has been designated by the Village Board as a "qualified tax-exempt 

obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, as amended. 

This Note is transferable only upon the books of the Village kept for that purpose at the 

office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 

depository for the Notes, and the Village appoints another depository, upon surrender of the Note 

to the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, together 

with a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the Fiscal 

Agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a new 

fully registered Note in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new 

depository in exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the 

Village for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -3- 

 

registration.  The Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Notes (i) after the 

Record Date, (ii) during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of 

notice of any proposed redemption of the Notes, or (iii) with respect to any particular Note, after 

such Note has been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and Village may treat and consider 

the Depository in whose name this Note is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the 

purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof and 

interest due hereon and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Notes are issuable solely as 

negotiable, fully-registered Notes without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral 

multiple thereof. 

[This Note shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 

Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent.] 

No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 

impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 

default hereunder. 

  



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -4- 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin, by 

its governing body, has caused this Note to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 

facsimile signatures of its duly qualified President and Village Clerk; and to be sealed with its 

official or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 

VILLAGE OF JACKSON 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

By: ______________________________ 

Michael E. Schwab 

President 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By: ______________________________ 

Jilline Dobratz 

Village Clerk 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -5- 

 

[Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This Note is one of the Notes of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned resolution 

of the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin. 

 

_______________________ 

_________, _____________ 

 

 

 

By____________________________ 

        Authorized Signatory] 



QB\60541827.1 

 

 

 -6- 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 

the within Note and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Note on 

the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:  _____________________ 

Signature Guaranteed: 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 

(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 

or Securities Firm) 

NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 

name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 

appears upon the face of the within Note in every 

particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 

change whatever. 

____________________________ 

(Authorized Officer) 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION #19-38 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING THE SALE OF $6,350,000 

GENERAL OBLIGATION PUBIC SAFETY BUILDING 

BONDS, SERIES 2019D 

 

 WHEREAS, on November 12, 2019, the Village Board of the Village of Jackson, 

Washington County, Wisconsin (the "Village") adopted an initial resolution authorizing the 

issuance of general obligation bonds in an amount not to exceed $6,350,000 for the public 

purpose of paying the cost of construction of a combined fire and police safety building (the 

"Project") (the above-referenced initial resolution is referred to herein as the "Initial 

Resolution");  

 

WHEREAS, on November 12, 2019, the Village Board of the Village also 

adopted a resolution (the "Set Sale Resolution"), providing that the general obligation 

bond issue authorized by the Initial Resolution be issued and sold as a single issue of 

bonds designated as "General Obligation Public Safety Building Bonds, Series 2019D" 

(the "Bonds") for the purpose of paying the cost of the Project;  

 

WHEREAS, the Village Board hereby finds and determines that the Project is within the 

Village's power to undertake and therefore serves a "public purpose" as that term is defined in 

Section 67.04(1)(b), Wisconsin Statutes;  

 

WHEREAS, the Village is authorized by the provisions of Section 67.04, Wisconsin 

Statutes, to borrow money and issue general obligation bonds for such public purpose;  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Set Sale Resolution, the Village has directed Ehlers & 

Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers") to take the steps necessary to sell the Bonds to pay the cost of the 

Project;  

 

WHEREAS, Ehlers, in consultation with the officials of the Village, prepared a Notice of 

Sale (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference) 

setting forth the details of and the bid requirements for the Bonds and indicating that the Bonds 

would be offered for public sale on December 10, 2019;  

 

WHEREAS, the Village Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) caused a form of notice of 

the sale to be published and/or announced and caused the Notice of Sale to be distributed to 

potential bidders offering the Bonds for public sale on December 10, 2019;  

 

WHEREAS, the Village has duly received bids for the Bonds as described on the Bid 

Tabulation attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Bid 

Tabulation"); 

 

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the bid proposal (the "Proposal") submitted by 

the financial institution listed first on the Bid Tabulation fully complies with the bid 

requirements set forth in the Notice of Sale and is deemed to be the most advantageous to the 

Village.  Ehlers has recommended that the Village accept the Proposal.  A copy of said Proposal 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -2- 

 

submitted by such institution (the "Purchaser") is attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated 

herein by this reference; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village Board now deems it necessary, desirable and in the best interest 

of the Village that the Bonds be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $___________. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village that: 

Section 1.  Ratification of the Notice of Sale and Offering Materials.  The Village Board 

hereby ratifies and approves the details of the Bonds set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto as and 

for the details of the Bonds.  The Notice of Sale and any other offering materials prepared and 

circulated by Ehlers are hereby ratified and approved in all respects.  All actions taken by 

officers of the Village and Ehlers in connection with the preparation and distribution of the 

Notice of Sale, and any other offering materials are hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 

Section 1A.  Authorization and Award of the Bonds.  For the purpose of paying the cost 

of the Project, there shall be borrowed pursuant to Section 67.04, Wisconsin Statutes, the 

principal sum of SIX MILLION THREE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($6,350,000) from the Purchaser in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Proposal.  

The Proposal of the Purchaser offering to purchase the Bonds for the sum set forth on the 

Proposal, plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, resulting in a true interest cost as set forth 

on the Proposal, is hereby accepted.  The President and Village Clerk or other appropriate 

officers of the Village are authorized and directed to execute an acceptance of the Proposal on 

behalf of the Village.  The good faith deposit of the Purchaser shall be applied in accordance 

with the Notice of Sale, and any good faith deposits submitted by unsuccessful bidders shall be 

promptly returned.  The Bonds shall bear interest at the rates set forth on the Proposal. 

 

Section 2.  Terms of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be designated "General Obligation 

Public Safety Building Bonds, Series 2019D"; shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount 

of $6,350,000; shall be dated December 30, 2019; shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof; shall be numbered R-1 and upward; and shall bear interest at the rates 

per annum and mature on June 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as set forth on 

the Pricing Summary attached hereto as Exhibit D-1 and incorporated herein by this reference.  

Interest shall be payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year commencing on 

June 1, 2020.  Interest shall be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 

months and will be rounded pursuant to the rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  

The schedule of principal and interest payments due on the Bonds is set forth on the Debt 

Service Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit D-2 and incorporated herein by this reference (the 

"Schedule"). 

 

Section 3.  Redemption Provisions.  The Bonds maturing on June 1, 2029 and thereafter 

are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Village, on June 1, 2028 or on 

any date thereafter.  Said Bonds are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from 

maturities selected by the Village, and within each maturity by lot, at the principal amount 

thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -3- 

 

[If the Proposal specifies that any of the Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption, the 

terms of such mandatory redemption shall be set forth on an attachment hereto as Exhibit MRP 

and incorporated herein by this reference.  Upon the optional redemption of any of the Bonds 

subject to mandatory redemption, the principal amount of such Bonds so redeemed shall be 

credited against the mandatory redemption payments established in Exhibit MRP for such Bonds 

in such manner as the Village shall direct.] 

Section 4.  Form of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issued in registered form and shall be 

executed and delivered in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit E and incorporated 

herein by this reference. 

Section 5.  Tax Provisions. 

(A)  Direct Annual Irrepealable Tax Levy.  For the purpose of paying the 

principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same becomes due, the full faith, credit and 

resources of the Village are hereby irrevocably pledged, and there is hereby levied upon all of 

the taxable property of the Village a direct annual irrepealable tax in the years 2019 through 

2038 for the payments due in the years 2020 through 2039 in the amounts set forth on the 

Schedule. 

(B)  Tax Collection.  So long as any part of the principal of or interest on the 

Bonds remains unpaid, the Village shall be and continue without power to repeal such levy or 

obstruct the collection of said tax until all such payments have been made or provided for.  After 

the issuance of the Bonds, said tax shall be, from year to year, carried onto the tax roll of the 

Village and collected in addition to all other taxes and in the same manner and at the same time 

as other taxes of the Village for said years are collected, except that the amount of tax carried 

onto the tax roll may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus money in the Debt 

Service Fund Account created below. 

(C)  Additional Funds.  If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds 

from the aforesaid tax levy to meet principal and/or interest payments on said Bonds when due, 

the requisite amounts shall be paid from other funds of the Village then available, which sums 

shall be replaced upon the collection of the taxes herein levied. 

 

(D)  Appropriation.  The Village hereby appropriates from taxes levied in 

anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds, proceeds of the Bonds or other funds of the Village on 

hand a sum sufficient to be irrevocably deposited in the segregated Debt Service Fund Account 

created below and used to pay debt service on the Bonds coming due in 2020 as set forth on the 

Schedule. 

 

Section 6.  Segregated Debt Service Fund Account. 

 

(A)  Creation and Deposits.  There be and there hereby is established in the 

treasury of the Village, if one has not already been created, a debt service fund, separate and 

distinct from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles.  Debt service or sinking funds established for obligations previously 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -4- 

 

issued by the Village may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service 

fund. 

 

Within the debt service fund, there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 

designated as the "Debt Service Fund Account for General Obligation Public Safety Building 

Bonds, Series 2019D, dated December 30, 2019" (the "Debt Service Fund Account") and such 

account shall be maintained until the indebtedness evidenced by the Bonds is fully paid or 

otherwise extinguished.  There shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund Account (i) all 

accrued interest received by the Village at the time of delivery of and payment for the Bonds; (ii) 

any premium which may be received by the Village above the par value of the Bonds and 

accrued interest thereon; (iii) all money raised by the taxes herein levied and any amounts 

appropriated for the specific purpose of meeting principal of and interest on the Bonds when due; 

(iv) such other sums as may be necessary at any time to pay principal of and interest on the 

Bonds when due; (v) surplus monies in the Borrowed Money Fund as specified below; and (vi) 

such further deposits as may be required by Section 67.11, Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

(B)  Use and Investment.  No money shall be withdrawn from the Debt Service 

Fund Account and appropriated for any purpose other than the payment of principal of and 

interest on the Bonds until all such principal and interest has been paid in full and the Bonds 

canceled; provided (i) the funds to provide for each payment of principal of and interest on the 

Bonds prior to the scheduled receipt of taxes from the next succeeding tax collection may be 

invested in direct obligations of the United States of America maturing in time to make such 

payments when they are due or in other investments permitted by law; and (ii) any funds over 

and above the amount of such principal and interest payments on the Bonds may be used to 

reduce the next succeeding tax levy, or may, at the option of the Village, be invested by 

purchasing the Bonds as permitted by and subject to Section 67.11(2)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, or 

in permitted municipal investments under the pertinent provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes 

("Permitted Investments"), which investments shall continue to be a part of the Debt Service 

Fund Account.  Any investment of the Debt Service Fund Account shall at all times conform 

with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") and any 

applicable Treasury Regulations (the "Regulations"). 

 

(C)  Remaining Monies.  When all of the Bonds have been paid in full and 

canceled, and all Permitted Investments disposed of, any money remaining in the Debt Service 

Fund Account shall be transferred and deposited in the general fund of the Village, unless the 

Village Board directs otherwise. 

 

Section 7.  Proceeds of the Bonds; Segregated Borrowed Money Fund.  The proceeds of 

the Bonds (the "Bond Proceeds") (other than any premium and accrued interest which must be 

paid at the time of the delivery of the Bonds into the Debt Service Fund Account created above) 

shall be deposited into a special fund (the "Borrowed Money Fund") separate and distinct from 

all other funds of the Village and disbursed solely for the purpose or purposes for which 

borrowed.  Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund may be temporarily invested in Permitted 

Investments.  Any monies, including any income from Permitted Investments, remaining in the 

Borrowed Money Fund after the purpose or purposes for which the Bonds have been issued have 

been accomplished, and, at any time, any monies as are not needed and which obviously 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -5- 

 

thereafter cannot be needed for such purpose(s) shall be deposited in the Debt Service Fund 

Account. 

Section 8.  No Arbitrage.  All investments made pursuant to this Resolution shall be 

Permitted Investments, but no such investment shall be made in such a manner as would cause 

the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code or the 

Regulations and an officer of the Village, charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, 

shall certify as to facts, estimates, circumstances and reasonable expectations in existence on the 

date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser which will permit the conclusion that the Bonds 

are not "arbitrage bonds," within the meaning of the Code or Regulations. 

Section 9.  Compliance with Federal Tax Laws.  (a)  The Village represents and 

covenants that the projects financed by the Bonds and the ownership, management and use of the 

projects will not cause the Bonds to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 

141 of the Code.  The Village further covenants that it shall comply with the provisions of the 

Code to the extent necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds 

including, if applicable, the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code.  The Village 

further covenants that it will not take any action, omit to take any action or permit the taking or 

omission of any action within its control (including, without limitation, making or permitting any 

use of the proceeds of the Bonds) if taking, permitting or omitting to take such action would 

cause any of the Bonds to be an arbitrage bond or a private activity bond within the meaning of 

the Code or would otherwise cause interest on the Bonds to be included in the gross income of 

the recipients thereof for federal income tax purposes.  The Village Clerk or other officer of the 

Village charged with the responsibility of issuing the Bonds shall provide an appropriate 

certificate of the Village certifying that the Village can and covenanting that it will comply with 

the provisions of the Code and Regulations. 

 

(b) The Village also covenants to use its best efforts to meet the requirements and 

restrictions of any different or additional federal legislation which may be made applicable to the 

Bonds provided that in meeting such requirements the Village will do so only to the extent 

consistent with the proceedings authorizing the Bonds and the laws of the State of Wisconsin and 

to the extent that there is a reasonable period of time in which to comply. 

 

Section 10.  Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The Bonds are hereby 

designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265 of the Code, 

relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax 

purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.   

 

Section 11.  Execution of the Bonds; Closing; Professional Services.  The Bonds shall be 

issued in printed form, executed on behalf of the Village by the manual or facsimile signatures of 

the President and Village Clerk, authenticated, if required, by the Fiscal Agent (defined below), 

sealed with its official or corporate seal, if any, or a facsimile thereof, and delivered to the 

Purchaser upon payment to the Village of the purchase price thereof, plus accrued interest to the 

date of delivery (the "Closing").  The facsimile signature of either of the officers executing the 

Bonds may be imprinted on the Bonds in lieu of the manual signature of the officer but, unless 

the Village has contracted with a fiscal agent to authenticate the Bonds, at least one of the 

signatures appearing on each Bond shall be a manual signature.  In the event that either of the 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -6- 

 

officers whose signatures appear on the Bonds shall cease to be such officers before the Closing, 

such signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes to the same extent as 

if they had remained in office until the Closing.  The aforesaid officers are hereby authorized and 

directed to do all acts and execute and deliver the Bonds and all such documents, certificates and 

acknowledgements as may be necessary and convenient to effectuate the Closing.  The Village 

hereby authorizes the officers and agents of the Village to enter into, on its behalf, agreements 

and contracts in conjunction with the Bonds, including but not limited to agreements and 

contracts for legal, trust, fiscal agency, disclosure and continuing disclosure, and rebate 

calculation services.  Any such contract heretofore entered into in conjunction with the issuance 

of the Bonds is hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 

Section 12.  Payment of the Bonds; Fiscal Agent.  The principal of and interest on the 

Bonds shall be paid by [________________, ___________, ______, which is hereby appointed 

as the Village's registrar and fiscal agent pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.10(2), 

Wisconsin Statutes] [the Village Clerk or Village Treasurer] (the "Fiscal Agent").  [The Village 

hereby authorizes the President and Village Clerk or other appropriate officers of the Village to 

enter a Fiscal Agency Agreement between the Village and the Fiscal Agent.  Such contract may 

provide, among other things, for the performance by the Fiscal Agent of the functions listed in 

Wis. Stats. Sec. 67.10(2)(a) to (j), where applicable, with respect to the Bonds]. 

 

Section 13.  Persons Treated as Owners; Transfer of Bonds.  The Village shall cause 

books for the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds to be kept by the Fiscal Agent.  The 

person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute 

owner thereof for all purposes and payment of either principal or interest on any Bond shall be 

made only to the registered owner thereof.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to 

satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

Any Bond may be transferred by the registered owner thereof by surrender of the Bond at 

the office of the Fiscal Agent, duly endorsed for the transfer or accompanied by an assignment 

duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon such 

transfer, the President and Village Clerk shall execute and deliver in the name of the transferee 

or transferees a new Bond or Bonds of a like aggregate principal amount, series and maturity and 

the Fiscal Agent shall record the name of each transferee in the registration book.  No 

registration shall be made to bearer.  The Fiscal Agent shall cancel any Bond surrendered for 

transfer. 

The Village shall cooperate in any such transfer, and the President and Village Clerk are 

authorized to execute any new Bond or Bonds necessary to effect any such transfer. 

Section 14.  Record Date.  The 15th day of the calendar month next preceding each 

interest payment date shall be the record date for the Bonds (the "Record Date").  Payment of 

interest on the Bonds on any interest payment date shall be made to the registered owners of the 

Bonds as they appear on the registration book of the Village at the close of business on the 

Record Date. 

 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -7- 

 

Section 15.  Utilization of The Depository Trust Company Book-Entry-Only System.  In 

order to make the Bonds eligible for the services provided by The Depository Trust Company, 

New York, New York ("DTC"), the Village agrees to the applicable provisions set forth in the 

Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations, which the Village Clerk or other authorized 

representative of the Village is authorized and directed to execute and deliver to DTC on behalf 

of the Village to the extent an effective Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations is not presently 

on file in the Village Clerk's office. 

 

Section 16.  Payment of Issuance Expenses.  The Village authorizes the Purchaser to 

forward the amount of the proceeds of the Bonds allocable to the payment of issuance expenses 

to Old National Bank at Closing for further distribution as directed by Ehlers. 

 

Section 17.  Official Statement.  The Village Board hereby approves the Preliminary 

Official Statement with respect to the Bonds and deems the Preliminary Official Statement as 

"final" as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and 

Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule").  All 

actions taken by officers of the Village in connection with the preparation of such Preliminary 

Official Statement and any addenda to it or final Official Statement are hereby ratified and 

approved.  In connection with the Closing, the appropriate Village official shall certify the 

Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official Statement.  The Village Clerk 

shall cause copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda or final Official 

Statement to be distributed to the Purchaser. 

 

Section 18.  Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure.  The Village hereby 

covenants and agrees, for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds, to enter into a written 

undertaking (the "Undertaking") if required by the Rule to provide continuing disclosure of 

certain financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain 

events in accordance with the Rule.  The Undertaking shall be enforceable by the owners of the 

Bonds or by the Purchaser on behalf of such owners (provided that the rights of the owners and 

the Purchaser to enforce the Undertaking shall be limited to a right to obtain specific 

performance of the obligations thereunder and any failure by the Village to comply with the 

provisions of the Undertaking shall not be an event of default with respect to the Bonds). 

 

To the extent required under the Rule, the President and Village Clerk, or other officer of 

the Village charged with the responsibility for issuing the Bonds, shall provide a Continuing 

Disclosure Certificate for inclusion in the transcript of proceedings, setting forth the details and 

terms of the Village's Undertaking. 

 

Section 19.  Record Book.  The Village Clerk shall provide and keep the transcript of 

proceedings as a separate record book (the "Record Book") and shall record a full and correct 

statement of every step or proceeding had or taken in the course of authorizing and issuing the 

Bonds in the Record Book. 

 

  



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -8- 

 

Section 20.  Bond Insurance.  If the Purchaser determines to obtain municipal bond 

insurance with respect to the Bonds, the officers of the Village are authorized to take all actions 

necessary to obtain such municipal bond insurance.  The President and Village Clerk are 

authorized to agree to such additional provisions as the bond insurer may reasonably request and 

which are acceptable to the President and Village Clerk including provisions regarding 

restrictions on investment of Bond proceeds, the payment procedure under the municipal bond 

insurance policy, the rights of the bond insurer in the event of default and payment of the Bonds 

by the bond insurer and notices to be given to the bond insurer.  In addition, any reference 

required by the bond insurer to the municipal bond insurance policy shall be made in the form of 

Bond provided herein. 

 

Section 21.  Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date.  All prior resolutions, 

rules or other actions of the Village Board or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions 

hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict.  In the 

event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid, 

such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof.  The foregoing shall take 

effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law. 

 

Adopted, approved and recorded December 10, 2019. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Michael E. Schwab 

President 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

Jilline Dobratz 

Village Clerk 

 (SEAL) 

 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Notice of Sale 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 

 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Bid Tabulation 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 

 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

Winning Bid 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D-1 

 

Pricing Summary 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution. 

 

 

(See Attached) 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D-2 

 

Debt Service Schedule and Irrepealable Tax Levies 

 

 

To be provided by Ehlers & Associates, Inc. and incorporated into the Resolution.  

 

 

(See Attached) 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

[EXHIBIT MRP 

 

Mandatory Redemption Provision 

The Bonds due on June 1, ____, ____ and ____ (the "Term Bonds") are subject to 

mandatory redemption prior to maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository) at a redemption 

price equal to One Hundred Percent (100%) of the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued 

interest to the date of redemption, from debt service fund deposits which are required to be made 

in amounts sufficient to redeem on June 1 of each year the respective amount of Term Bonds 

specified below: 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity) 

For the Term Bonds Maturing on June 1,         

 Redemption 

       Date       Amount 

 ____ $______ 

 ____   ______ 

 ____   ______ (maturity)] 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

(Form of Bond) 

 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

REGISTERED STATE OF WISCONSIN DOLLARS 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 

NO. R-___ VILLAGE OF JACKSON $_______ 

GENERAL OBLIGATION PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING BOND, SERIES 2019D 

 

MATURITY DATE: ORIGINAL DATE OF ISSUE: INTEREST RATE: CUSIP: 

    

June 1, _____ December 30, 2019 ____% ______ 

 

DEPOSITORY OR ITS NOMINEE NAME:  CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _______________________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 

($__________) 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin (the 

"Village"), hereby acknowledges itself to owe and promises to pay to the Depository or its 

Nominee Name (the "Depository") identified above (or to registered assigns), on the maturity 

date identified above, the principal amount identified above, and to pay interest thereon at the 

rate of interest per annum identified above, all subject to the provisions set forth herein regarding 

redemption prior to maturity.  Interest shall be payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 

of each year commencing on June 1, 2020 until the aforesaid principal amount is paid in full.  

Both the principal of and interest on this Bond are payable to the registered owner in lawful 

money of the United States.  Interest payable on any interest payment date shall be paid by wire 

transfer to the Depository in whose name this Bond is registered on the Bond Register 

maintained by [________________, ___________, ______] OR [the Village Clerk or Village 

Treasurer] (the "Fiscal Agent") or any successor thereto at the close of business on the 15th day 

of the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date (the "Record Date").  This Bond 

is payable as to principal upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the Fiscal 

Agent. 

For the prompt payment of this Bond together with interest hereon as aforesaid and for 

the levy of taxes sufficient for that purpose, the full faith, credit and resources of the Village are 

hereby irrevocably pledged. 

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds aggregating the principal amount of $6,350,000, 

all of which are of like tenor, except as to denomination, interest rate, maturity date and 

redemption provision, issued by the Village pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.04, 

Wisconsin Statutes, for the public purpose of paying the cost of construction of a combined fire 

and police safety building, as authorized by resolutions adopted on November 12, 2019 and 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -2- 

 

December 10, 2019.  Said resolutions are recorded in the official minutes of the Village Board 

for said dates. 

The Bonds maturing on June 1, 2029 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to 

maturity, at the option of the Village, on June 1, 2028 or on any date thereafter.  Said Bonds are 

redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the Village, and 

within each maturity by lot (as selected by the Depository), at the principal amount thereof, plus 

accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

 

[The Bonds maturing in the years ________ are subject to mandatory redemption by lot 

as provided in the resolutions referred to above, at the redemption price of par plus accrued 

interest to the date of redemption and without premium.] 

 

In the event the Bonds are redeemed prior to maturity, as long as the Bonds are in 

book-entry-only form, official notice of the redemption will be given by mailing a notice by 

registered or certified mail, overnight express delivery, facsimile transmission, electronic 

transmission or in any other manner required by the Depository, to the Depository not less than 

thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date.  If less than all of the 

Bonds of a maturity are to be called for redemption, the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed 

will be selected by lot.  Such notice will include but not be limited to the following:  the 

designation, date and maturities of the Bonds called for redemption, CUSIP numbers, and the 

date of redemption.  Any notice provided as described herein shall be conclusively presumed to 

have been duly given, whether or not the registered owner receives the notice.  The Bonds shall 

cease to bear interest on the specified redemption date provided that federal or other immediately 

available funds sufficient for such redemption are on deposit at the office of the Depository at 

that time.  Upon such deposit of funds for redemption the Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be 

outstanding. 

It is hereby certified and recited that all conditions, things and acts required by law to 

exist or to be done prior to and in connection with the issuance of this Bond have been done, 

have existed and have been performed in due form and time; that the aggregate indebtedness of 

the Village, including this Bond and others issued simultaneously herewith, does not exceed any 

limitation imposed by law or the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin; and that a direct annual 

irrepealable tax has been levied sufficient to pay this Bond, together with the interest thereon, 

when and as payable. 

This Bond has been designated by the Village Board as a "qualified tax-exempt 

obligation" pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, as amended. 

This Bond is transferable only upon the books of the Village kept for that purpose at the 

office of the Fiscal Agent, only in the event that the Depository does not continue to act as 

depository for the Bonds, and the Village appoints another depository, upon surrender of the 

Bond to the Fiscal Agent, by the registered owner in person or his duly authorized attorney, 

together with a written instrument of transfer (which may be endorsed hereon) satisfactory to the 

Fiscal Agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney.  Thereupon a 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -3- 

 

new fully registered Bond in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the new 

depository in exchange therefor and upon the payment of a charge sufficient to reimburse the 

Village for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 

registration.  The Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged to make any transfer of the Bonds (i) after the 

Record Date, (ii) during the fifteen (15) calendar days preceding the date of any publication of 

notice of any proposed redemption of the Bonds, or (iii) with respect to any particular Bond, 

after such Bond has been called for redemption.  The Fiscal Agent and Village may treat and 

consider the Depository in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for 

the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price hereof 

and interest due hereon and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Bonds are issuable solely as 

negotiable, fully-registered Bonds without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral 

multiple thereof. 

[This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose until the Certificate of 

Authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Fiscal Agent.] 

No delay or omission on the part of the owner hereof to exercise any right hereunder shall 

impair such right or be considered as a waiver thereof or as a waiver of or acquiescence in any 

default hereunder. 

  



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -4- 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin, by 

its governing body, has caused this Bond to be executed for it and in its name by the manual or 

facsimile signatures of its duly qualified President and Village Clerk; and to be sealed with its 

official or corporate seal, if any, all as of the original date of issue specified above. 

VILLAGE OF JACKSON 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

By: ______________________________ 

Michael E. Schwab 

President 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By: ______________________________ 

Jilline Dobratz 

Village Clerk 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -5- 

 

[Date of Authentication:  _______________, ______ 

 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

 This Bond is one of the Bonds of the issue authorized by the within-mentioned 

resolutions of the Village of Jackson, Washington County, Wisconsin. 

 

_______________________ 

_________, _____________ 

 

 

 

By____________________________ 

        Authorized Signatory] 



QB\60546531.1 

 

 

 -6- 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

(Social Security or other Identifying Number of Assignee) 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

______________________________________, Legal Representative, to transfer said Bond on 

the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:  _____________________ 

Signature Guaranteed: 

_____________________________   ________________________________ 

(e.g. Bank, Trust Company    (Depository or Nominee Name) 

or Securities Firm) 

NOTICE:  This signature must correspond with the 

name of the Depository or Nominee Name as it 

appears upon the face of the within Bond in every 

particular, without alteration or enlargement or any 

change whatever. 

____________________________ 

(Authorized Officer) 



Contractor’s Application for Payment No. 2

To (Owner): Village of Jackson From (Contractor): Payne & Dolan, Inc. Via (Engineer): Cedar Corporation

Project: Chateau Drive and Hickory Lane Reconstruction Contract:

Owner’s Contract No: Contractor’s Project No: 205083 Engineers Project No: 05789-0009

Contractor’s Certification

$735,660.95 Work Completed $

b. 5% X

________________

Stored Material $

_________________

c. Total Retainage (Line 5.a + Line 5.b) S $36,783.05

6. AMOUNT ELIGIBLE TO DATE (Line 4- Line 5.c) S $698,877.90

7. LESS PREVIOIJS PAYMENTS (Line 6 from prior Application) $ $303,608.03

8. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION $ $395,269.87

The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of its knowledge, the follong:
( I ) All previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work done under the Contract
have been applied on account to discharge Contractor’s legitimate obligations incurred in connection with
the Work covered by prior Applications for Payment;
(2) Title to all Work. materials and equipment incorporated in said Work. or otherwise listed in or
covered by this Application for Payment, will pass to Owner at time ofpayment free and clear of all
Liens, security interests, and encumbrances (except such as are covered by a bond acceptable to Owner
indemnifying Owner against any such Liens, security interest, or encumbrances); and
(3) All the Work covered by this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents
and is not defective.

is recommended by:

(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of the other amount)

(Engineer) (Date)

(Line 8 or other - attach explanation of the other amount)

is approved by:

ContractorSiii*4we..

Approved by:

(Owner)

Funding or Financing Entity (if applicable)

(Date)

(Date)

I r*j
LJ ‘4.*L s,...’

RflINT TA
DO1IMtN1 CQMMi Application Period: 10/11/19 - 11/15/19 Application Date: 1 1/20/2019

Approved Change Orders

Application For Payment
Chan2e Order Summary

Number Additions Deductions
I $21,500.00 $1,590.00

TOTALS $21,500.00 $1,590.00

NET CHANGE ‘
S19,910.00

CHANGE ORDERS

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACI’ PRICE S $873,842.00

2. NetchangebyChangeOrders S $19,910.00

3. Current Contract Price (Line 1 ± 2) S $893,752.00

4. I’OTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE

(Column I total on Progress Estimates) $ $735,660.95

5. RETAINAGE:

a.5% X $36.783.05

Payment of:

>2

$395,269.87$

$Payment of:

By: Date:

$395,269.87

00 62 76 - I



Unit Price Progress Estimate Contractor’s Application

Project: Chateau Drive and Hickory Lane Reconstruction Application Number: 2

Application Perrnd: Application Date: November 20, 2019

A BI C D E Fl G HI I
Item Estimated

Unit
Quantity Completed Total Completed &

Bid No. Od
.

PrevioLr pplcations This Anpltcation Materials Stored StoredioDate (C+E+G
Description Quantity LC

•9j_ Amount Quantity Amount Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
A-I COMMON EXCAVATION, INCLUDING ASPHALT PAVEMENTREMOVAL 1,100 $58.00 812.71 $47,137.18 812.71 $47137.18 73.9%
A-2 SAW CUTTING ASPHALT ROADWAY 155 S3.00 155 $465.00 155 $465.00 100.0%
A-3 SANITARY MANHOLE RING AND CASTING REPLACEMENT 5 $1,250.00 5 $6,250.00 5 $6,250.00 100.0%
A-4 8”PVCWATERMAIN 576 $117.50 554 $65,095.00 554 $65,095.00 96.2%
A-5 VALVE ABANDONMENT 3 $850.00 3 $2,550.00 3 $2,550.00 100.0%
A-6 SALVAGEHYDRANT I S3,000.00 I $3,000.00 1 $3,000.00 100.0%
A-7 I 1/4’ HDPEWATERSERVICERELAY 350 $104.00 365.2 $37,980.80 365.2 $37,980.80 104.3%
A-8 HYDRANT ASSEMBLY I $7,800.00 1 $7,800.00 I $7,800.00 100,0%
A-9 8 GATE VALVE 3 $4,100.00 3 $12,300.00 3 $12,300.00 100.0%

A-10 12”RCPSTORMSEWER 448 $94.00 445 $41,830.00 445 $41,830.00 99.3%
A-I 1 CATC}I BASIN 2 $2,750.00 3 $8,250.00 3 $8,250.00 150.0%
A-12 4” PVC STORM SEWER LATERAL (10 UNiTS) 722 $77.50 852.5 $66,068.75 852.5 $66,068.75 I 1 8.10/a
A-13 REMOVE CONCRETE SIDEWALK 4,523 $3.00 4023 $12,069.00 4023 512,069.00 88.9%
A-14 4” CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5,030 $8.37
A-IS REMOVE CURB AND GUTTER 1,172 $4.00 1 100 $4,400.00 -93 -S372.00 1007 $4,028.00 85.9%
A-16 30” CURB AND GUTTER TYPE D 1,172 $20.00 1007 $20,140.00 1007 $20,140.00 85.9%
A-17 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APRON 1,404 $3.50 1404 $4,914.00 1934.2 $6,769.70 3338.2 $1 1,683.70 237.8%
A-18 7” CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APRON 2,664 $1 1.00 33.52 S368.72 33.52 $368.72 1.3%
A-19 EXCAVATION BELOW SIJBGRADE (EBS) 150 $20.00 61.3 $1,226.00 61.3 $1,226.00 40.9%
A-20 EBSBACKFILL I 1/4” DENSE 150 $19.00 122.6 $2,329.40 122.6 $2,329.40 81.7%
A-21 EI3S BACKFILL 3’ DENSE ISO $18.00
A-22 CRUSLIEDAGGREGATE BASECOURSE I 1/4” 1,375 $16.50 1351.16 $22,294.14 1351.16 $22,294.14 98.3%
A-23 LOWERLAYERHMAPAVEMENT 460 S91.00 434.21 $39,513.11 434.21 $39,513.11 94.4%
A-24 UPPER LAYER JIMA PAVEMENT 250 $120.00

.__&,i__ TRAFFIC CONTROL I $1 1,999.90 1 $1 1,999.90 1 $1 1,999.90 100.0%
A-26 TREE REMOVAL 3 $1,250.00 2 $2,500.00 3 53,750.00 5 $6,250.00 166.7%
A-27 LAWN RESTORATiON 862 SI 1.75
A-28 INLETPROTECTION - - .— 9 $125.00 •____••_9 $1,125.00 I $125.00 lO $1,250.00 111.1%
13-I rIYF1VtCdNi tOIvaaJvui.L 815 S48.00 707 $33,936.00 707 S33,936.00 86.7%
B-2 SAWCUTTINGASPHALTROADWAY 175 53.00 198 $594.00 198 $594.00 I 13.1%
B-3 SANITARY MANHOLE RING AND CASTTh3G REPLACEMENT 2 $1,250.00 2 $2,500.00 2 $2,500.00 100.0%
B-4 12” PVC WATER MAIN 337 $154.00 336 $51,744.00 336 551,744.00 99.7%
B-S VALVEABANDONMENT I $850.00 I $850.00 I $850.00 100.0%
B-6 I 1/4” HDPE WATER SERVICE RELAY 220 $104.00 173 $17,992.00 173 $17,992.00 78.6%
B-7 12’ GATE VALVE I $5,600.00 I $5,600.00 I $5,600.00 100.0%
B-8 8” GATE VALVE I $4,100.00 1 $4,100.00 I $4,100.00 100.0%
B-9 4” PVC STORM SEWER LATERAL 309 $77.50 332 $25,730.00 332 $25,730.00 107.4%

8-10 REMOVE CONCRETE SIDEWALK 2,51 1 $3.00 251 1 $7,533.00 251 1 $7,533.00 100.0%
B-I I 4” CONCRETE SIDEWALK 3,197 $9.50 3248.54 $30,861.13 3248.54 $30,861.13 101.6%
B-I2 REMOVECURBANOGUTTER 741 $4.00 745 $2,980.00 33 $132.00 778 $3,112.00 105.0%
B-I3 30’ CURB AND GUTI’ER TYPE D 741 $20.50 700 $14,350.00 78 SI,599.00 778 $15,949.00 105.0%
B-14 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APRON 369 $3.50 569 $1,991.50 569 51,991.50 154.2%
B-IS 7” CONCRETEDRIVEWAYAPRON 551 $11.30 762.16 $8,612.41 762.16 $8,612.41 138.3%
B-16 EXCAVATION BELOW SUEGRADE (EBS) 125 520.00 52.72 $1,054.40 52.72 $1,054.40 42.2%
B-I7 EBS BACKFILL I 1/4’ DENSE 125 $19.00 100.16 $1,903.04 5.28 $100.32 105.44 $2,003.36 84.4%

00 62 76 - 2



Unit Price Progress Estimate Contractor’s Application

Project: Chateau Drive and Hickory Lane Reconstniction 1Apt0 Number: 2

Appicaton Period: Application Date: November 20, 2019

A BI C 1D1 E Fl G Hf I J
-

Item Estimated Quantity Completed Total Completed &
Btd No. Bid Previou pplications This Anplication Materials Stored StoredtolDate (C+E+G)

Descriptton Quantity ri
Quantity Amount 2E!!!! Amount Quantity Amount Quanttty Amount

A-I COMMON EXCAVATION, INCLUDING ASPI-IALT PAVEMENT REMOVAL 1,100 $58.00 81271 $4713718 81271 $47,137.18 73.9%
B-18 EBSBACKFILL3” DENSE 125 $18.00
B-19 CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE I 1/4” 1,025 $16.50 992.41 $16,374.77 169.4 $2,795.10 I 161.81 $19,169.87 I 13.3%
8-20 LOWER LAYER 1-IMA PAVEMENT 350 $93.80 349.47 S32,780.29 349.47 $32,780.29 99.8%
8-21 UPPER LAYER HMA PAVEMENT 190 $122.56
B-22 TRAFFICCONTROL I $11,451.80 I $11,451.80 I $11,451.80 100.0%
B-23 TREE REMOVAL 3 $1,250.00 3 $3,750.00 3 $3,750.00 100.0%
B-24 LAWN RESTORATION 920 $1 1.75 690 $8,107.50 690 $8,107.50 75.0%
8.25 INLET PROTECTION 6 $125.00 6 $750.00 6 $750.00 100.0%

CO CREDIT - 13 CURB BOX MATERIAL 13 .$3000 13 -$390.00 13 -$390.00 100.0%
CO CREDIT - STORM LATERAL CLEAN-OUT 4 -$300.00 4 -$ I ,200.00
CO STIJMPGRINDING 2 $500.00 2 $1,000.00
CO CHIMNEY REBUILD - CATCH BASIN 5 $600.00 4 $2,400.00 4 $2,400.00 80.0%
CO CHIMNEY REBUILD . STORM MANHOLES 4 $650.00 4 $2,600.00 4 $2,600.00 100.0%
CO YARD DRAIN GRATE WITH 8” SDR 35 STORM LEAD 1 52,950.00
CO SANITARY LATERAL RELOCATION 2 $4,600.00 2 $9,200.00 2 S9,200.00 100.0%
CO ITEM A-I I - ADD I CATCH BASIN I $2,750.00

TOTAL $319587.41 $416,073.54 $735,660.95 —

0062 76-3



DOCUMENT 00560

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Order No.: 2

Date: tU2U19

Asreement Date: lll2lll9

NAME OF PROJECT: Prolect No. 190605 -2019Improvements - Jackson Park West

Parkins Lot

OWNER: Villase of Jackson

CONTRACTOR: Pavne and Dolan,Inc.

The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:

This contract change order adds ltem No. 100-04, Excavation Common to the contract at a price of
S30.00/CY and ltem No. 100-07a, Install Pulverized Base to the contract at a price of $10.00/Ton.

Construction shall be in accordance with WDOT 205.3 and 305.3. Payment shall be in accordance

with Section 01025, 1.07, Item No. 100-04, Excavation Common, WDOT 305.4 and 305.5.

Justification:
To ensure parking lot drainage, excavation of the existing parking lot subgrade was required, and

suitable material was needed to fill the excavation to provide acceptable base for the finished

asphaltic surface.

Change to CONTRACT PRICE:

Original Contract Price: s 6s.3s7.05

Current Contract Price adjusted by Previous Change Order: $ 65'357.05

The Contract Price due to this Change Order will be increased by: $ 7,400.00

The new Contract Price including this Change Order will be: $ 72,757,05

Change to CONTRACT TIME:

The CONTRACT TIME will be (increased/decreased) by Q calendar days.

The date for completion of all work will be ll/0lll9.

Jackson Park West Parkins Lot 190605 Contract Chanse Order



Accepted By:

Representing: Villase of Jackson

Print Name/Title: Brian Kober, P.E. - Director of Public works

Date:

Requested By:

Representing: Pavne and Dolan. Inc.

Print Name/Title: Parker Sovey - Pro.iect Manager

Date:

Owner

Recommended By: k?/% Engineer

Representing: Gremmer & Associates, Inc.

Print Name/Title: Matt Krofta - Engineering Technician

Date: ll ntrn

Contractor

Jackson Park West Parking Lot 190605 Contract Change Order



DOCUMENT 00560

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Order No.: 3a

Date: ru2rl19

Asreement Date: l0l25ll9

NAME OF PROJECT: Project No. 190605 -2019Improvements - Jackson Park Cul-de-
Sac

OWNER: Village of Jackson

CONTRACTOR: Payne and Dolan,Inc.

The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:

This contract change order adds ltem No. 100-15a, Strqw EMAT, to the contract at a price of
$0.65/SY. All material shall be in accordance with WDOT 628.2. Biodegradable stakes shall be

used for anchoring. Construction shall be in accordance with WDOT 628.3 Payment shall be in
accordance with WDOT 628.4 and 628.5, at locations as directed by the Engineer. Payment is

additional compensationto ltem No. 100-15, Lawn Restoration.

Justification:
Newly constructed ditch slopes are too steep for mulch to be a viable erosion control measure. Due

to ditches being located in mowed areas, the use of biodegradable stakes is required.

Change to CONTRACT PRICE:

Orisinal Contract Price: s $126.665.86

Current Contract Price adiusted bv Previous Chanse Order: $ $142,197.86

The Contract Price due to this Chanse Order will be increased bv: $ $390.00

The new Contract Price includins this Chanse Order will be: $ 142.587.86

Change to CONTRACT TIME:

The CONTRACT TIME will be (increased/decreased) by Q calendar days.

The date for completion of all work will be ll/0lll9.

Jackson Park Cul-de-Sac I 90605 Contract Chanee Order



Accepted By:

Representing: Village of Jackson

Print Name/Title: Brian Kober, P.E. - Director of Public Works

Date:

Owner

RecommendedBy: @ Engineer

Representing: Gremmer & Associates, Inc.

Print Name/Title: Matt Krofta - Engineering Technician

Date: ll ltl/t9

Requested By: Contractor

Representing: lqyne and Dolan,Inc.

Print Name/Title: Parker Sovey - Proiect Manager

Date:

Jackson Park Cul-de-Sac 190605 Contract Chanse Order



DOCUMENT 00560

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Order No.: 3b

Date: rU2Ut9

Asreement Date: 10125/19

NAME OF PROJECT: Project No. 190605 -2019 Improvements - Sherman Road
Drainase

OWNER: Village of Jackson

CONTRACTOR: Pavne and Dolan.Inc.

The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:

This contract change order adds ltem No. 100-15a, Straw EMAT, to the contract at a price of
$0.65/SY. All material shall be in accordance with WDOT 628.2. Biodegradable stakes shall be
used for anchoring. Construction shall be in accordance with WDOT 628.3 Payment shall be in
accordance with WDOT 628.4 and 628.5, at locations as directed by the Engineer. Payment is
additional compensationto ltem No. 100-15, Lawn Restoration.

Justification:
Newly constructed ditch slopes are too steep for mulch to be a viable erosion control measure. Due
to ditches being located in mowed areas, the use of biodegradable stakes is required.

Change to CONTRACT PRICE:

Orisinal Contract Price: s 63.724.09

Current Contract Price adiusted bv Previous Chanee Order: $ 63.724.09

The Contract Price due to this Chanse Order will be increased bv: S 260.00

The new Contract Price includins this Chanse Order will be: S 63.984.09

Change to CONTRACT TIME:

The CONTRACT TIME will be (increased/decreased) by Q calendar days.

The date for completion of all work will be 11/01/19.

Sherman Road Drainase 190605 Contract Chanse Order



Accepted By:

Representing: Village of Jackson

Print Name/Title: Brian Kober, P.E. - Director of Public Works

Date:

Owner

RecommendedBy: ry Engineer

Representing: Gremmer & Associates, Inc.

Print Name/Title: Matt Krofta - Engineering Technician

Date: ll /^l/t1

Requested By: Contractor

Representing: Payne and Dolan, Inc.

Print Name/Title: Parker Sovey - Project Manager

Date:

Sherman Road Drainase 190605 Contract Change Order



Matthew Krofta

From: Brian Kober <brian.kober@villageofjackson.com>

Sent: Friday, October 25,2019 12:41 PM

To: Parker Sovey

Cc: Matthew Krofta: Jeff Chvosta

Subject: RE: EMAT

The Village of Jackson approves the straw EMAT for 50.65 / SY.

Brian W. Kober. P.E.

Director of Public Works/Village Engineer

W194 N16650 Eagle Drive
PO Box 637

Jackson, Wl 53037
Phone: 252-677-O7O7

Fax: 262-67'7-8770

From: Parker Sovey <PSovey@payneanddolan.com>

Sent: Friday, October 25,2OI9 72:27 PM

To: Brian Kober <brian.kober@villageofjackson.com>
Ccl Matthew Krofta <M.Krofta@gremmerassociates.com>; Jeff Chvosta <j.chvosta@gremmerassociates.com>

Subject: EMAT

Brian, Just received pricing back for Jackson Park/Sherman regarding the EMAT.

Coconut EMAT S1.05 / SY Add to lawn restoration unit price

Straw EMAT SO.0S / SY Add to lawn restoration unit price

Please let me know if this is authorized as soon as possible.

Thank You,

Parker Sovey
Project Manager
262.524.1879 offrce

FglyNH & pG$JN 262.366.5587 mobire

-toqo**eonAT€D -An Equatoppoftunity Emptoyer





Gremmer and Associates, Inc.
 93 S. Pioneer Road, Suite 300

Fond du Lac, WI 54935
(920) 924-5720

fax (920)924-5725Payne & Dolan, Inc.‐ Prime Contractor
Village of Jackson ‐ Sherman Road Drainage

Item No.  Description Units
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Bid Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

100‐02 Removing Curb & Gutter LF 60 6.06$             $363.60 73.00 $442.38 $0.00 73.00 $442.38 121.7%
100‐03 Removing Concrete Sidewalk SY 15 10.10$           $151.50 21.00 $212.10 2.00 $20.20 23.00 $232.30 153.3%
100‐04 Excavation Common CY 80 60.00$           $4,800.00 80.00 $4,800.00 $0.00 80.00 $4,800.00 100.0%
100‐05 Base Aggregate Dense 3/4‐Inch TON 5 19.83$           $99.15 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐06 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4‐Inch TON 70 19.83$           $1,388.10 70.00 $1,388.10 $0.00 70.00 $1,388.10 100.0%
100‐10 Asphaltic Surface TON 130 112.61$         $14,639.30 $0.00 141.90 $15,979.36 141.90 $15,979.36 109.2%
100‐12 Concrete Curb & Gutter 24‐Inch Type D LF 60 65.00$           $3,900.00 $0.00 74.00 $4,810.00 74.00 $4,810.00 123.3%
100‐13 Concrete Sidewalk 4‐Inch SF 100 21.25$           $2,125.00 $0.00 270.00 $5,737.50 270.00 $5,737.50 270.0%
100‐14 Concrete Sidewalk 6‐Inch SF 45 21.25$           $956.25 $0.00 46.00 $977.50 46.00 $977.50 102.2%
100‐15 Lawn Restoration SY 485 8.32$                 $4,035.20 $0.00 27.00 $224.64 27.00 $224.64 5.6%
100‐15a Straw EMAT SY 400 0.65$                 $260.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐17 Inlet Protection Type A EACH 1 176.77$         $176.77 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐18 Inlet Protection Type C EACH 2 75.76$           $151.52 1.00 $75.76 $0.00 1.00 $75.76 50.0%
100‐19 Temporary Ditch Checks LF 12 25.25$           $303.00 20.00 $505.00 $0.00 20.00 $505.00 166.7%
100‐20 Traffic Control LS 1 4,000.00$      $4,000.00 0.50 $2,000.00 0.25 $1,000.00 0.75 $3,000.00 75.0%
100‐23 Sawing Asphalt & Concrete LF 300 2.00$             $600.00 309.00 $618.00 $0.00 309.00 $618.00 103.0%

200‐01
Connnect to Existing Storm Sewer 
Structure

EACH 1 1,010.10$      $1,010.10 1.00 $1,010.10 $0.00 1.00 $1,010.10 100.0%

200‐02 Adjust Inlet Casting EACH 1 303.03$         $303.03 $0.00 1.00 $303.03 1.00 $303.03 100.0%

200‐03
Storm Manhole 4‐FT Diameter w/ Casting

EACH 2 3,139.40$      $6,278.80 2.00 $6,278.80 $0.00 2.00 $6,278.80 100.0%

200‐04 Storm Inlet Median 1 Grate w/ Casting EACH 1 2,792.63$      $2,792.63 1.00 $2,792.63 $0.00 1.00 $2,792.63 100.0%
200‐05 Storm Sewer Pipe Class III‐B 12‐Inch LF 223 70.18$           $15,650.14 220.20 $15,453.64 $0.00 220.20 $15,453.64 98.7%

SUBTOTAL $63,984.09 $35,576.51 $29,052.23 $64,628.74 101%

Work completed, previous estimates $35,576.51
Work completed, this estimate $29,052.23
Total work completed $64,628.74
Retainage, this estimate $0.00
Total Retainage, previous estimates $1,778.83
Total Retainage, final $1,778.83
Amount due to contractor, this estimate $29,052.23

Previous Estimates Estimate #2 Cumulative Totals

% Complete

11/21/2019 Sherman Road Drainage_Pay_Estimate.xls Page 1



Gremmer and Associates, Inc.
 93 S. Pioneer Road, Suite 300

Fond du Lac, WI 54935
(920) 924-5720

fax (920)924-5725Payne & Dolan, Inc.‐ Prime Contractor
Village of Jackson ‐ Jackson Park West Parking Lot

Item No.  Description Units
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Bid Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

100‐04 Excavation Common CY 150 30.00$           $4,500.00 $0.00 150.00 $4,500.00 150.00 $4,500.00 100.0%
100‐07 Pulverize and Relay SY 2020 9.53$             $19,250.60 $0.00 1,515.00 $14,437.95 1,515.00 $14,437.95 75.0%
100‐07a Install Pulverized Base TON 290 10.00$           $2,900.00 $0.00 290.00 $2,900.00 290.00 $2,900.00 100.0%
100‐10 Asphaltic Surface TON 445 87.06$           $38,741.70 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐21 Pavement Marking 4‐Inch LF 1295 5.05$             $6,539.75 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐22 Pavement Marking Handicap Symbol EACH 1 295.00$         $295.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐23 Sawing Asphalt & Concrete LF 265 2.00$             $530.00 263.00 $526.00 $0.00 263.00 $526.00 99.2%

SUBTOTAL $72,757.05 $526.00 $21,837.95 $22,363.95 31%

Work completed, previous estimates $526.00
Work completed, this estimate $21,837.95
Total work completed $22,363.95
Retainage, this estimate $1,091.90
Total Retainage, previous estimates $26.30
Total Retainage, final $1,118.20
Amount due to contractor, this estimate $20,746.05

Previous Estimates Estimate #2 Cumulative Totals

% Complete

11/21/2019 Jackson Park West Parking Lot_Pay_Estimate.xls Page 1



Gremmer and Associates, Inc.
 93 S. Pioneer Road, Suite 300

Fond du Lac, WI 54935
(920) 924-5720

fax (920)924-5725Payne & Dolan, Inc.‐ Prime Contractor
Village of Jackson ‐ Jackson Park Cul‐De‐Sac

Item No.  Description Units
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Bid Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

Actual 
Quantity Total

100‐01 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 3,030.30$      $3,030.30 1.00 $3,030.30 $0.00 1.00 $3,030.30 100.0%
100‐02 Removing Curb & Gutter LF 85 6.06$             $515.10 88.00 $533.28 $0.00 88.00 $533.28 103.5%
100‐04 Excavation Common CY 1095 24.94$           $27,309.30 1389.00 $34,641.66 $0.00 1,389.00 $34,641.66 126.8%
100‐05 Base Aggregate Dense 3/4‐Inch TON 45 18.31$           $823.95 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐06 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4‐Inch TON 985 15.28$           $15,050.80 1254.00 $19,161.12 197.00 $3,010.16 1,451.00 $22,171.28 147.3%
100‐07 Breaker Run 3‐Inch TON 706 22.00$           $15,532.00 706.00 $15,532.00 $0.00 706.00 $15,532.00 100.0%
100‐08 Concrete Driveway 6‐Inch SY 115 58.50$           $6,727.50 79.00 $4,621.50 $0.00 79.00 $4,621.50 68.7%
100‐09 Concrete Surface Drain CY 1 300.00$         $300.00 1.00 $300.00 $0.00 1.00 $300.00 100.0%
100‐10 Asphaltic Surface TON 435 89.00$           $38,715.00 $0.00 260.00 $23,140.00 260.00 $23,140.00 59.8%
100‐11 Concrete Curb & Gutter 18‐Inch Type D LF 700 26.20$           $18,340.00 731.00 $19,152.20 $0.00 731.00 $19,152.20 104.4%
100‐15 Lawn Restoration SY 1160 8.32$                 $9,651.20 $0.00 116.00 $965.12 116.00 $965.12 10.0%
100‐15a Straw EMAT SY 600 0.65$                 $390.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 0.0%
100‐16 Silt Fence LF 385 3.03$             $1,166.55 387.00 $1,172.61 $0.00 387.00 $1,172.61 100.5%
100‐19 Temporary Ditch Checks LF 25 25.25$           $631.25 21.00 $530.25 $0.00 21.00 $530.25 84.0%
100‐20 Traffic Control LS 1 3,999.91$      $3,999.91 0.50 $1,999.96 0.25 $999.98 0.75 $2,999.93 75.0%
100‐23 Sawing Asphalt & Concrete LF 45 9.00$             $405.00 43.00 $387.00 $0.00 43.00 $387.00 95.6%

SUBTOTAL $142,587.86 $101,061.88 $28,115.26 $129,177.13 91%

Work completed, previous estimates $101,061.88
Work completed, this estimate $28,115.26
Total work completed $129,177.13
Retainage, this estimate $0.00
Total Retainage, previous estimates $5,053.09
Total Retainage, final $5,053.09
Amount due to contractor, this estimate $28,115.26

Previous Estimates Estimate #2 Cumulative Totals

% Complete

11/21/2019 Jackson Park Cul-De-Sac_Pay_Estimate.xls Page 1





























 

w w w . s r f c o n s u l t i n g . c o m  
6720 Frank Lloyd Wright Ave, Suite 100 Madison, WI 53562| 608.298.5400 Fax: 1.866.440.6364 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

SRF 13292.PP 

Mr. Brian Kober, PE 

Director of Public Works 

Village of Jackson 

N168 W20733 Main Street 

Jackson, WI  53037 

 

Subject: Proposal for Professional Services for Village of Jackson TIF Dev. Traffic Study  

 Jackson, WI 

 

Dear Mr. Kober: 

Based on your request, SRF Consulting Group, Inc. (SRF) is pleased to submit this proposal to 

provide professional services for traffic impact analyses related to your TIF district. 

Scope of Services 

We propose to carry out the work (“Scope of Services”) described as follows: 

1. Perform a field review of the study area to obtain roadway and intersection geometrics, 

intersection control, signing and pavement marking features, and surrounding land uses.  

Existing study area intersections were identified by WisDOT and are as follows: 

a. WIS 60 and Jackson Drive (traffic signal control) 

b. WIS 60 and Ridgeway Road (current T-Intersection, side-street stop control) 

c. WIS 60 and Eagle Drive (side-street stop control) 

2. Collect peak weekday morning (6:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.), afternoon (3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.), and 

Saturday midday (11:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.) intersection turning movement counts at the WIS 60 

intersections with Ridgeway Road and Eagle Drive. Saturday midday counts will also be 

conducted at the WIS 60 and Jackson Drive intersection (it is SRF’s understanding that 

weekday AM/PM traffic data at this intersection has already been collected and will be 

provided to SRF for use in this study).  Weekday counts will be conducted on a Tuesday, 

Wednesday, or Thursday while school is in session and will distinguish passenger vehicles, 

trucks, pedestrians, and bicycles.  Traffic data will be formatted for WisDOT use and 

submitted to WisDOT for approval and traffic forecast development. 



Mr. Brian Kober, PE November 24, 2019 
Village of Jackson Page 2 

3. Develop trip generation, trip distribution, and trip assignment of the proposed development 

using trip rates published in the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition.  This information 

will be submitted to WisDOT for approval before subsequent tasks will commence. 

4. Perform weekday and Saturday peak-hour traffic operations analysis for the intersection 

turning movement counts collected in Task 2 and the access drives for the proposed 

development.  Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) methodologies will be used to develop 

vehicle delay and queue output data.  The analysis will comprise of the following scenarios, 

per WisDOT TIA guidelines: 

a. Initial build-year (Year 2020), no build conditions (“Existing Conditions”) 

b. Initial build-year (Year 2020), build conditions 

c. Interim build-year (Year 2030), no build conditions 

d. Interim build-year (Year 2030), build conditions 

e. Horizon-year (Year 2035), no build conditions 

f. Horizon-year (Year 2035), build conditions  

5. Identify operational deficiencies and evaluate improvement strategies to improve mobility in 

the study area.   

6. Review intersection sight distance and vision triangles to ensure the proposed access drive 

meets appropriate WisDOT criteria. 

7. Develop and submit a draft TIA report via WisDOT TIA guidelines. 

8. Address WisDOT comments of the draft TIA report and submit a final TIA report for 

WisDOT and Village use. 

Assumptions 

The following information will be provided by the Village to aid in the analysis and development of 

the TIA report: 

• Site plan of the study TIF district, including site access and circulation, with land uses and 

building size for each parcel 

• Phasing schedule of the TIF district 

Only one agreed-upon land use and site access plan shall be analyzed as part of this project.  Any 

changes or deviations from the agreed-upon land use and site access plan, or the site’s phasing 

schedule, will be considered “Extra Services”. 



Mr. Brian Kober, PE November 24, 2019 
Village of Jackson Page 3 

This proposal does not include a formal Intersection Control Evaluation as may be required in the 

future by WisDOT prior to implementing a controlled intersection at either Ridgeway Road or Eagle 

Drive. 

Schedule 

We will complete this work within a mutually agreed-upon time schedule. 

Basis of Payment/Budget 

We propose to be reimbursed for our services on an hourly basis for the actual time expended. 

Other direct project expenses such as printing, supplies, reproduction, etc., will be billed at cost and 

mileage will be billed at the current allowable IRS rate for business miles. Invoices are submitted on 

a monthly basis for work performed during the previous month. Payment is due within 30 days. 

Based on our understanding of the project and our scope of services, we estimate the cost of our 

services to be $18,800, which includes both time and expenses.   

Changes in the Scope of Services 

It is understood that if the scope or extent of work changes, the cost will be adjusted accordingly. 

Before any out-of-scope work is initiated, however, we will submit a budget request for the new 

work and will not begin work until we receive authorization from you.  

Standard Terms and Conditions 

The attached Standard Terms and Conditions (Attachment A), together with this proposal for 

professional services, constitute the entire agreement between the Client and SRF Consulting 

Group, Inc. and supersede all prior written or oral understandings. This agreement may only be 

amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a duly executed written instrument. 



Mr. Brian Kober, PE November 24, 2019 
Village of Jackson Page 4 

Acceptance/Notice to Proceed  

A signed copy of this proposal, mailed or emailed to our office, will serve as acceptance of this 

proposal and our notice to proceed. The email address is jknudson@srfconsulting.com. 

We sincerely appreciate your consideration of this proposal and look forward to working with you 

on this project. Please feel free to contact us if you have any questions or need additional 

information. 

Sincerely, 

 

SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC. 

 

 

 

 

 

Jeff Knudson, PE, PTOE    Derek Hungness, PE, PTOE 

Project Manager     Principal in Charge 

JK 

Attachment(s): Standard Terms and Conditions (Attachment A) 

Approved (Village of Jackson) 

 

        
(signature) 

Name        

Title        

Date        

This cost proposal is valid for a period of 90 days. SRF reserves the right to adjust its cost 
estimate after 90 days from the date of this proposal. 

S:\Marketing\Proposals\2019 Letter Proposals\13292.PP Village of Jackson TIA\SRF Proposal for Village of Jackson TIF Traffic Study.docx 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

November 26, 2019 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 1 of 3 

 

DRAFT Minutes 
Board of Public Works Meeting 
Tuesday, November 26, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
Jackson Village Hall 
N168 W20733 Main Street 
  

1. Call to Order and Roll Call. 
Chair Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 Members present:  Brian Heckendorf, Dan Leonard, Tr. Lippold, Sarah Malchow, Tr. 
Malcolm and Gloria Teifke 

 Village Board Member Present:  Tr. Kurtz 
 Staff Present:  Brian Kober and Jilline Dobratz 
 
2. Approval of the Board of Public Works Minutes of October 29, 2019. 

Motion by Dan Leonard, second by Brian Heckendorf to approve the Board of Public 
Works minutes of October 29, 2019.          

 Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 
3. Limited Water Service Study – Presentation – City Water. 

Brian Kober introduced Tom Nennig, P.E., from City Water. Mr. Nennig presented the 
Limited Water Service Study. A capacity analysis of the water supply and distribution 
system for the Village of Jackson Water Utility was completed.  The approval of future 
connections to the LWSA must be made on a case-by-case basis. Recommendations to 
improve the supply capacity, pressure and fire flow of the LWSA were given.  

 
4. Town of Jackson Water Expansion Area – Water Service Request – Robin 

Olson. 
Brian Kober stated this was referred from last month as the water capacity study wasn’t 
finished. The request is for a new single-family home on Sherman Road. Robin Olson 
explained they have a farm house and they rent out the land. Her husband is very ill, 
and she can’t do the work herself. They would like to build a one-story house, and they 
have people interested in buying the farm as a hobby farm. She needs to down-size 
and they have been living on the property since 1986. They support the community and 
want to stay in Jackson. The Town of Jackson and the Village of Jackson have approved 
the Certified Survey Map and the land division is finished. 
Motion by Brian Heckendorf, second by Tr. Malcolm to approve the Town of Jackson 
Water Expansion Area – Water Service Request – Robin Olson. 
Vote:  5 ayes, 2 nays (Chair Olson and Tr. Lippold). Motion carried. 
 

5. Pay Request #2 – 2019 Chateau Dr & Hickory Ln Reconstruction Project. 
Brian Kober gave project updates for Pay Request #2. Hickory Lane is paved, and 
landscaping is completed. Chateau Drive the binder lift is on, sidewalks and driveways 
have been poured. It will be paved next Tuesday, and curbs will be back filled. 
Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Chair Olson to recommend Budget & Finance and 
Village Board approve Pay Request #2 – 2019 Chateau Drive and Hickory Lane 
Reconstruction Project in the amount not to exceed $395,269.87.  



 

November 26, 2019 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Dan Leonard commented on the bids and the additional expenses that are being 
charged. Brian Kober stated the driveways were changed, adding costs to the projects. 
He clarified the changes and the contractor was asked for add-ons. Some items need to 
be fixed that will not be paid. Chair Olson inquired on having change orders come 
before the committee in the future to reduce confusion.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

6. Change Orders 2, 3a & 3b – 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project. 
Brian Kober reviewed the change order increases. Change Order 2 is to install 
pulverized base to provide acceptable base for the finished surface. Change Order 3a 
and 3b, due to the time of year and the weather, is for adding Straw EMAT.  
Motion by Brian Heckendorf, second by Chair Olson to recommend Budget & Finance 
and Village Board approve Change Orders 2, 3a & 3b – 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project 
in the amount of $8,050.00  
Vote:  6 ayes, 0 nays, 1 abstain (Dan Leonard). Motion carried. 

 
7. Pay Request #2 – 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project. 

Brian Kober commented this is for three projects. Sherman Road Drainage has been 
paved, EMAT has been put down and completed. Jackson Alley Cul-de-sac was paved. 
Jackson Park West Parking Lot has been pulverized and will be finished next spring. 
Motion by Chair Olson, second by Brian Heckendorf to recommend Budget & Finance 
and Village Board approve Pay Request #2 – 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project in the 
amount of $77,913.54.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

8. Request #1 – Reimbursement Offsite Improvement Laurel Springs. 
Brian Kober explained this was negotiated with part of the Developers Agreement, 
Laurel Springs Addition No. 1. The improvements are benefiting the Village, not the 
subdivision. Items for reimbursement are Jackson Drive Reconstruction, Cedar Creek 
Road Reconstruction, Rail Road Water Main Construction, Engineering, Permits and 
Fees. 
Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Tr. Malcolm to recommend Budget & Finance and 
Village Board approve Request #1 – Reimbursement Offsite Improvement Laurel 
Springs – Bielinski Homes in the amount of $234,788.75.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 
 

9. Review of Quote for Traffic Study of TIF #7 by SRF Consulting Group. 
Brian Kober requested a proposal to provide professional services for a traffic impact 
analyses related to TIF #7.  WisDOT identified some traffic concerns and requested a 
traffic study. This is a TIF #7 expense. 
Motion by Brian Heckendorf, second by Dan Leonard to recommend Budget & Finance 
and Village Board approve Review of Quote for Traffic Study of TIF #7 by SRF 
Consulting Group not to exceed $18,800.00.  
Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried. 

 
10. Discussion of Village Informational Signs. 



 

November 26, 2019 Board of Public Works Minutes 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Chair Olson referred the Village Informational Signs to the January Board of Public 
Works meeting.    

 
11. Director of Public Works Report. 

Brian Kober gave the report. He emailed the Washington County Highway 
Commissioner on what needs to happen next with the Park-n-Ride. Hopefully by 
January there will be some direction. Local Road Program: Next year the plan is to 
complete Hunters Road from Jackson Drive to Chateau Drive, Chateau Drive from 
Hunters Road to Willow Ridge, which approximately a $41,000.00 grant will be 
received. The Yard Waste Site: fencing is being completed, electric will be completed on 
the gate and they are moving block in to set up the yard. Chair Olson asked for a 
revised draft of the site regulations for the January Board of Public Works meeting. 
Brian Kober stated it will be brought back in Resolution form. Well #6: the whole 
column pipe must be replaced, and parts are on backorder. Rosewood Drive: two 
electric services have been changed on the existing houses. WE Energies will complete 
the electric conversion on January 11, 2020. Two apartments buildings will be 
constructed soon. 
Motion by Chair Olson, second by Tr. Lippold to place the Director of Public Works 
Report on file. 

 Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Motion carried.   
 
12. Citizens/Village Staff to Address the Board. 

Brian Heckendorf commented that along the path by East Side Mart, the retaining wall 
is pulling away from the path. 
 

13. Adjourn. 
 Motion by Tr. Lippold, second by Dan Leonard to adjourn. 
 Vote:  7 ayes, 0 nays. Meeting was adjourned 8:44 p.m.     
 
 Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
 Jilline Dobratz, CMC/WCMC 
 Village Clerk 













Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

Washington County
Washington County, W isconsin

Trails
Public Open Spaces
Current Parcel
PLSS Monument

Road Centerline I, USH
Road Centerline STH, CTH
RoadCenterline TWN,CVS,PVT

Landhook
Meander Line
PLSS Boundary
Plat
Lot
Parcels

Parcel Retired YTD
Right-of-Way
Text Leader Lines

October 25, 2019
0 0.045 0.090.0225 mi

0 0.075 0.150.0375 km

1:2,131

Washington County | Southeast Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission | US Department of Agriculture | Washington County, US Census Bureau | Washington County, Wisconsin | 
 




	1- 12102019 Village Board Agenda
	2- Resolution #19-36 - Honoring Jackson Fire Department Members
	3- 11122019 Village Board Minutes - Draft
	4- 12022019 Special Village Board Minutes - Budget Hearing Draft
	5- License List Approval - December
	6- 2020-2021 Election Inspector Village Board Memo
	7- Resolution #19-37 - Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of $2,025,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2019C
	8- Resolution #19-38 - Awarding the Sale of $6,350,000 General Obligation Public Safety Building Bonds, Series 2019D
	9- Pay Request #2 2019 Chateau Dr & Hickory Ln Projects
	9a- Change Order # 2 3a 3b 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project
	Change Order #2
	Change Order #3

	9b- Pay Request #2 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project
	Pay Request #2 2019 Jackson Park Alley Project
	Sherman Road Drainage_Pay_Estimate_2
	Jackson Park West Parking Lot_Pay_Estimate_2
	Jackson Park Cul-De-Sac_Pay_Estimate_2

	9c- Request #1 Reimbursement Offsite Improvement Laurel Springs
	Reimbursement Request #1 Offsite Improvement Costs Laurel Springs Add. No. 1
	Offsite Improvement Costs  Invoices Laurel Springs Add. No. 1

	9d- Review of Quote for Traffic Study of TIF #7
	9e- 11262019 Board of Public Works Minutes - Draft
	9f- Water Service Request Robin Olson Sherman Rd
	Memo Water Service Request Robin Olson Sherman Rd 10 25 2019
	Web Map




